
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801
www.ryedale.gov.uk working with you to make a difference

1 Apologies for absence 

2 Minutes of meeting held on 7 June 2016 (Pages 3 - 8)

3 Urgent Business 
To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers should be 
dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 100B(4)(b) of 
the Local Government Act 1972.

4 Declarations of Interest 
Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the Code of 
Conduct.

Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or Council 
are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  This requirement is 
not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest without further explanation. 

5 Part B Report - Developer Contributions from Small Sites (Pages 9 - 13)

6 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee (Pages 14 - 16)

7 16/00469/73A - Willow House, Main Street , Normanby, Kirkbymoorside (Pages 
17 - 19)

8 16/00729/MFUL - Gravel Pit Farm, Sand Hutton, Malton (Pages 20 - 46)

Please Contact Ellis Mortimer/Karen Hood

Extension
271/386

Date of Publication 27 June 2016

E Mail ellis.mortimer@ryedale.gov.uk; 
karen.hood@ryedale.gov.uk

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

Tuesday 5 July 2016 at 6.00 pm (following the Licensing Committee)
 
Council Chamber, Ryedale House, Malton

     Agenda

Public Document Pack

http://www.ryedale.gov.uk/


9 16/00825/MFUL - New Cliff House, Cross Lane, Sinnington, Pickering (Pages 47 
- 60)

10 16/00834/MFUL - East Heslerton Wold Farm, Whin Moor Lane, West Heslerton, 
Malton (Pages 61 - 69)

11 16/00848/MFUL - Hatfields Land Rover, Thornton Road Industrial Estate Road, 
Pickering (Pages 70 - 103)

12 16/00901/MFUL - West Ings Bungalow, New Road to Kirkdale Lane, 
Kirkbymoorside (Pages 104 - 111)

13 16/00965/MFUL - Peckets Yard, East End, Sheriff Hutton (Pages 112 - 114)

14 16/00013/MOUT - The Showfield, Pasture Lane, Malton (Pages 115 - 152)

15 15/00423/OUT - Land at Meadowfield, 40 Thornton Road, Pickering (Pages 153 - 
172)

16 16/00902/73A - Land North of Greys Farm, High Street, Cropton, Pickering 
(Pages 173 - 179)

17 16/00936/HOUSE - Rose Cottage, 2 South View, Kirby Misperton Lane, Great 
Habton (Pages 180 - 185)

18 16/00941/FUL - Shop, 42 Beverley Road, Norton, Malton (Pages 186 - 196)

19 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent. 

20 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers. (Pages 197 - 205)

21 Update on Appeal Decisions 



Planning Committee 1 Tuesday 7 June 2016

Planning Committee

Held at Norton College, Langton Road, Norton

Tuesday 7 June 2016

Present

Councillors  Paul Andrews (Substitute), Cleary, Farnell, Frank (Vice-Chairman), 
Goodrick, Hope, Maud, Shields, Thornton and Windress (Chairman)

Substitutes: Councillor P J Andrews (for Councillor L M Burr MBE)

In Attendance

Tim Goodall, Karen Hood, Gary Housden, Ellis Mortimer and Anthony Winship

Minutes

1 Apologies for absence

Apologies were received from Councillor Burr.

2 Minutes of meeting held 10 May 2016

Decision

That the minutes of the Planning Committee held on 10 May 2016 be approved 
and signed as a correct record.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 1]

3 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

4 Declarations of Interest

Councillor           Item
Shields           7
Goodrick           13
Maud           12
Andrews           7, 10

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Planning Committee 2 Tuesday 7 June 2016

5 Part B Report - Ryedale Community Infrastructure Levy - Payment 
Instalment Policy

The Planning Committee considered the report of the Head of Planning and 
Housing which had previously been circulated.

Recommendation to Council

Council is recommended to approve:

(i) The key elements of a CIL payment instalment policy as outlined in 
paragraph 6.5 of the report to Committee.

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

6 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted a list (previously circulated) of the 
applications for planning permission with recommendations thereon.

7 16/00404/MOUT - Land To North Of Sutton Grange, Langton Road, Norton

16/00404/MOUT - Residential development of up to 6no. dwellings together 
with formation of vehicular access - Site A (site area 0.9ha) (revised details to 
refusal 15/00099/MOUT dated 22.07.2015).

Decision

PERMISSION REFUSED - As recommended

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillors Shields and 
Andrews declared a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

8 16/00405/MOUT - Land Adjacent To Auburn Cottages, Langton Road, 
Norton

16/00405/MOUT - Residential development of up to 79no. dwellings together 
with formation of vehicular access - Site B (site area 3.65ha) (revised details to 
refusal 15/00098/MOUT dated 22.07.2015).

Page 4



Planning Committee 3 Tuesday 7 June 2016

Decision

PERMISSION REFUSED - As recommended.

[For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

9 16/00400/73A - Land Adj Millfield Lodge, Main Street, Amotherby, Malton

16/00400/73A - Variation of Condition 01 of approval 13/00589/OUT to insert 
drawing no. MP/2014/1/1K - alteration to house design.

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions as recommended.

[For 8 Against 1 Abstain 1]

10 16/00469/73A - Willow House, Main Street, Normanby, Kirkbymoorside

16/00469/73A - Variation of condition 05 of approval 13/00817/FUL dated 
04.09.2013 to add Drawing no. 230 316 1 Rev A and Variation of Condition 16 
of the same approval to add Drawing no. 230 316 1 Rev A and to replace 
drawing no. 2326/4 Rev A by Drawing no. 2326/4 Rev E and Variation of 
Condition 12 of the same approval to replace drawing no. 2326/4 Rev A by 
Drawing no. 2326/4 Rev E - revisions relating to means of enclosure and 
landscaping (part-retrospective).

Decision

DEFERRED FOR A SITE VISIT - Tuesday 21 June 10am.

[For 5 Against 3 Abstain 2]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Andrews declared 
a personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Page 5



Planning Committee 4 Tuesday 7 June 2016

11 16/00721/HOUSE - Rowan Cottage, School House Hill, Marishes Low 
Road, Low Marishes

16/00721/HOUSE - Erection of a two storey side extension and single storey 
rear extension (revised details to refusal 15/01437/HOUSE dated 01.02.2016).

Decision

DEFERRED

[For 10 Against 0 Abstain 0]

12 16/00785/FUL - Land At, Manor View, Rillington, Malton

16/00785/FUL - Erection of a three bedroom bungalow with attached garage

Decision

PERMISSION GRANTED - Subject to conditions and with an additional 
condition limiting access to red and blue outlined land only.

[For 7 Against 1 Abstain 2]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Maud declared a 
personal non pecuniary but not prejudicial interest.

Page 6



Planning Committee 5 Tuesday 7 June 2016

13 15/00097/BC - Whey Carr Farm, Main Street, Sand Hutton

Decision

(A) The Planning Committee expects positive and pro-active steps to be taken 
by the landowners to comply with the planning conditions described in the 
Officer report within 14 days from the date Officers contacted the landowners;

(B) The Council Solicitor be authorised in consultation with the Head of 
Planning and Housing Services to issue an enforcement notice and any further 
action pursuant to section 172 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) requiring the following steps to be taken:

1. Cease any use on the land arising from the approved use which results in a 
noise level which exceeds 45dB 15 minute LAeq as measured at the 
boundaries of the application site;

2. Subject to clauses 3, 4 and 5 below, cease the use of the land for the 
approved use outside the authorised hours of use where the authorised hours 
of use are between 08.00 and 18.00 on Monday to Friday; and between 08.00 
and 12.00 on Saturday;

3. Cease the use of the land for the approved use on Sundays and Public 
Holidays;

4. Cease the use of machinery or power tools on the land before 08.00 or after 
18.00 on Monday to Friday;

5. Cease the use of machinery or power tools at any time on Saturdays, 
Sundays or Public Holidays.

 [For 9 Against 0 Abstain 0]

In accordance with the Members Code of Conduct Councillor Goodrick declared 
a personal and disclosable pecuniary interest and left the meeting for the 
duration of this item.

14 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.

There was no urgent business.

Page 7



Planning Committee 6 Tuesday 7 June 2016

15 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

The Head of Planning & Housing submitted for information (previously 
circulated) a list which gave details of the applications determined by the Head 
of Planning & Housing in accordance with the scheme of delegated decisions.

16 Update on Appeal Decisions

Members were advised of the following appeal decisions:

Appeal ref - APP/Y2736/D/16/3144553 - Embleton, Harome, YO62 5JF

Meeting Closed at 8.55pm

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE  5 JULY 2016 

  
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
PART B:   RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL  

 
REPORT TO:   PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

DATE:    5 JULY 2016 
 

REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF PLANNING AND HOUSING 

    GARY HOUSDEN 
 

TITLE OF REPORT:  DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS FROM SMALL SITES 

 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 For Members to consider the implications of recent changes to the national Planning 

Practice Guidance (PPG) and to subsequently agree this Council’s position. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
2.1 That Council resolves to : 

 

(i) Continue to negotiate the on-site provision of affordable housing in line w ith 
Policy SP3 of the Ryedale Plan w ith the exception that on-site affordable 

housing contributions w ill not be sought from sites of 10 dw ellings or less and 

which have a maximum combined gross f loorspace of no more than 
1,000square metres 

  

(ii)  Continue to negotiate the on-site provision of affordable housing in line w ith 
SP3 of the Ryedale Plan w ith the exception that on sites of betw een six and 

ten dw ellings in parishes outside of Malton, Norton and Pickering, f inancial 

contributions w ill be sought in lieu of the existing on-site policy requirement 
and that f inancial contributions of an equivalent of 40% of provision w ill be 

sought on such sites in w est and south west Ryedale 

 
(iii)  Not seek f inancial contributions from small residential sites through the 

planning process tow ards affordable housing on sites of f ive dw ellings or less 
under Policy SP3 of the Ryedale Plan 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



PLANNING COMMITTEE  5 JULY 2016 

  
 

 

 

3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

3.1 Follow ing a recent Court of Appeal judgment, national policy guidance on developer  

contributions from small sites has been amended. This Council has development 
plan policies w hich seek to secure f inancial contributions from small sites tow ards 

affordable housing and open space. It is important that members are aw are of the 

implications of the recent change and that the Council clarif ies its position in relation 
to the implementation of these policies. 

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 

 

4.1 Changes to national planning policy are a material planning consideration. It is  
considered that signif icant weight needs to be given to this in the decision making 

process. Failure to do so w ould lead to an increase in planning appeals and increase 

the risk of costs being aw arded against the authority in any appeal situation. 
 

5.0 POLICY CONTEXT AND CONSULTATION 

 
5.1 This report specif ically relates to Policies SP3 (Affordable Housing) and SP11 

(Community Facilities and Services) of the Ryedale Plan. Although Policy SP22 of 

the Ryedale Plan covers Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the 
Community Infrastructure Levy, it is generic and covers key principles. It is not 

specif ic to contributions from small sites. 

 
6.0 REPORT DETAILS 

 

 Background 
 

6.1 Members w ill be aware that national policy relating to developer contributions from 
small sites has been in a state of f lux over the past two years. A brief chronology of 

events is summarised below : 

 

• Follow ing a Coalit ion Government consultation in March 2014, a Written Ministerial 

Statement w as issued on 28 November 2014. The Ministerial Statement set out 
national policy in respect of developer contributions from small sites. It made it clear 

that: 

o For sites of 10 units or less and w hich have a maximum combined gross 
f loorspace of 1,000 square metres, affordable housing and tarif f  style 

contributions should not be sought 

o In designated rural areas (under Section 157 of the Housing Act 1985), 
authorities may choose to implement a low er threshold of f ive units or less, 

beneath w hich affordable housing and tarif f  style contributions should not be 

sought. If  this threshold is implemented then affordable housing and tariff 
contributions on developments of betw een 6-10 units should be sought as a 

f inancial payment only and only be commuted until after the completion of 

units w ithin the development 
o Affordable housing and tar if f  style contributions should not be sought from 

any development consisting only of the construction of a residential annex or 

extension to an existing home. 
 

• On the 10 February 2015, members of the Planning Committee considered a report 
which proposed a response to the statement. The recommendations to apply the 

Page 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE  5 JULY 2016 

  
 

 

national policy w ere subsequently agreed by Council.  

 

• In response to the Ministerial Statement, a Judicial Review  (sought by West 

Berkshire District Council and Reading Borough Council) found the policy 
promulgated by the Secretary of State in the Ministerial Statement to be unlawful. 

 

• Follow ing that judgment, the Council reverted to giving full w eight to its development 
plan policies for planning applications relating to small sites. 

 

• In the meantime, the Secretary of State appealed the judicial review  decision and in 

May 2016, the Court of Appeal allow ed the Secretary of State's appeal and handed 
dow n a judgment w hich gives legal effect to the policy set out in the Written 

Ministerial Statement of November 2014. 

 

• Follow ing the order of the Court, the Government recently amended the national 

Planning Practice Guidance to set out the specif ic circumstances w here contributions 
for affordable housing and tarif f style planning obligations should not be sought from 

small scale and self-build development. This reflects the details of the policy of the 

November 2014 Ministerial Statement (as summar ised above). 
 

6.2 It is against this background that this report has been prepared and why it effectively 

mirrors the advice and recommendations of the report to Planning Committee in 
February 2015.  

 

 Implications for the implementation of the Ryedale Plan and the decision 
making process 

 
6.3 Members are aw are that the adopted Ryedale Plan- Local Plan Strategy specif ically 

seeks to secure the follow ing contributions from residential development sites: 

 
 SP3: In the Market Tow ns and Service Villages 

 

• Pro-rata f inancial contributions from all residential development below  the threshold 
of 5 dw ellings/ 0.2ha  

• 35% of dwellings on-site to be affordable on sites of 5 dwellings/ 0.2ha (w ith a 
f inancial contribution equivalent to a further 5% of provision in w est and south w est 

Ryedale)  
  

 SP11: Financial contributions tow ards open space provision 

 
6.4 Policies SP3 and SP11 form part of the adopted development plan. Members are 

also aw are that Local Planning Authorities are required to make decisions in 

accordance w ith the development plan unless material considerations indicate 
otherw ise. Off icers consider the change in national policy to be a signif icant material 

consideration w hich in effect, outw eighs the provisions of the development plan in 

respect of those policies that seek to secure f inancial contributions from smaller  
residential development sites.  

 

6.5  Ryedale receives a steady stream of applications to w hich this national policy change 
would apply. For this reason, it  is considered important that the Council clarif ies its  

position in relation to this matter. In essence, the Council has tw o options. It  could 

selectively review the development plan and bring policies in line w ith national policy 
or alternatively, it can recognise the implications of national policy and formally agree 

Page 11



PLANNING COMMITTEE  5 JULY 2016 

  
 

 

a position to be applied through the decision making process.  

 
6.6 It is emphasised that off icers do not consider a ‘do nothing’ scenario to be realistic or  

appropriate. It  is considered that the primacy w hich is afforded to the development 

plan can only remain intact for as long as its policies reflect current national policy. A 
good test to apply in such circumstances would be to consider w hether current 

development plan policies w ould be found to be sound if examined against current 

national policy. Elements of Policies SP3 and SP11 are now  inconsistent w ith 
national policy. 

 
6.7 It is inevitable that national policy changes w ill occur over the life of a development 

plan. Given the complexity, cost and length of time involved in the plan making 

process, any decision to review  a plan requires careful consideration. It is considered 
that in this instance, the national policy changes do not in themselves, w arrant a 

review  of the plan. They are limited in the extent to w hich they affect the Plan as a 

whole and they render only parts of SP3 and SP11 inconsistent w ith national policy.  
 

6.8 As an alternative, it is considered that Council could formally resolve to acknow ledge 

the implications of these national policy changes and to agree a position in terms of 
the implementation of Policies SP3 and SP11. These policies w ould not be formally  

changed but Council w ould resolve to apply greater w eight to the national policy  as a 

signif icant material consideration in the determination of relevant planning 
applications.  

 

6.9 It should be noted that the impact of the national changes on Policy SP11 is  
considered to be largely negligible now that Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)  

charges have been brought into effect in Ryedale. Although Policy SP11 seeks  

f inancial contributions tow ards open space from all residential development, the 
policy is designed to operate in conjunction w ith the CIL. Now  that CIL is in operation 

in Ryedale, off-site open space provision and improvements w ill be funded through 
the levy rather than Section 106 contributions. 

 

6.10 Most of Ryedale (w ith the exception of Malton, Norton and Pickering) is a designated 
rural area under the Housing Act 1985 and as such, the national policy changes 

would support the authority seeking to secure f inancial contributions for sites of 

betw een 6-10 dw ellings (as opposed to the current position w here on-site provision is 
sought on sites of 5 or more). The authority w ould no longer be able to secure 

affordable housing contributions from sites of 5 dw ellings or less. The provisions of 

SP3 to seek on-site affordable housing provision on larger sites would continue to 
apply. 

 

6.11 A less straightforward element of SP3 relates to the differential policy target which 
applies across the District. Policy SP3, in effect seeks a 40% affordable housing 

contribution in w est and south west Ryedale w hich is split in terms of on-site 

provision and a f inancial contribution. It  is considered that this should be applied as a 
40% financial contribution from sites of betw een 6-10 houses in order to reflect 

national policy. 
 

6.12 There is some risk that the Council w ill be accused of amending its affordable 

housing policy outside of the plan making process. How ever the suggested way 
forward is less onerous on developers and landow ners than current local policy w hich 

itself has been recently justif ied in terms of housing need and development viability. 

Additionally, the approach w ould only bring the implementation of the existing 

Page 12



PLANNING COMMITTEE  5 JULY 2016 

  
 

 

development plan policy in line w ith national policy. For this reason, this risk is 

considered to be relatively low .  
 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 

 
7.1 The follow ing implications have been identif ied: 

a) Financial 

The national policy change has undoubted implications for Policies SP3 and 
SP11 of the Ryedale Plan and if appropriate w eight is not given to this, this w ill 

give rise to addit ional planning appeals and potential costs on appeal. 
 

b) Legal 

The national policy change is a signif icant material consideration w hich has 
implications for the w eight w hich can be afforded to relevant development plan 

policies. 

 
c) Other (Equalities, Staff ing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 

Disorder) 

Under the approach less f inancial contributions w ill be sought tow ards affordable 
housing provision. How ever, Members are reminded that the Ryedale Plan does 

not rely on small residential sites to deliver signif icant contributions to affordable 

housing or to make signif icant contributions to housing land supply.  
 

8.0 NEXT STEPS  

 
8.1 Officers w ill prepare some text to clarify the Council’s response to the national policy 

changes and to clarify the implementation of Policies SP3 and SP11, w hich will be 

place on the Ryedale Plan pages of the w eb-site. 
 

 
Gary Housden 

Head of Planning and Housing 

 
Author:  Jill Thompson, Forw ard Planning Manager  

Telephone No:  01653 600666 ext: 327 

E-Mail Address: jill.thompson@ryedale.gov.uk 
 

 

Background Papers: 
Written ministerial statement to Parliament by Brandon Lew is MP on support for 

small-scale developers, custom and self-builders. Delivered on 28 November 2014. 

First published 1 December 2014. (DCLG)  
 

Court of Appeal. Secretary of State for Communit ies and Local Government and 

West Berkshire District Council and Reading Borough Council. [2016] EWCA Civ 441 
 

Planning Practice Guidance. Planning Obligations. Paragraph 012 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 

 

https://www.gov.uk/government/speeches/small-scale-developers 
 

http://planningguidance.planningportal.gov.uk/revisions/23b/012 

Page 13



05/07/16

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/00469/73A

Variation of condition 05 of approval 13/00817/FUL dated 04.09.2013 to 

add Drawing no. 230 316 1 Rev A and Variation of Condition 16 of the 

same approval to add Drawing no. 230 316 1 Rev A and to replace drawing 

no. 2326/4 Rev A by Drawing no. 2326/4 Rev E and Variation of Condition 

12 of the same approval to replace drawing no. 2326/4 Rev A by Drawing 

no. 2326/4 Rev E - revisions relating to means of enclosure and landscaping 

(part-retrospective)

7

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Willow House Main Street Normanby Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RH 

16/00729/MFUL

Erection of a 16,000 bird free range egg laying unit with 2 no. associated 

feed bins, parking/turning area and concrete apron

8

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Gravel Pit Farm Sand Hutton Malton YO41 1LN 

16/00825/MFUL

Erection of nursery building and finishing building for the housing of pigs

9

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: New Cliff House  Cross Lane Sinnington Pickering YO62 6SS

16/00834/MFUL

Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of pigs

10

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: East Heslerton Wold Farm Whin Moor Lane West Heslerton Malton North 

Yorkshire YO17 8RT 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



05/07/16

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/00848/MFUL

Demolition of existing Land Rover showroom and workshop and erection 

of a Land Rover dealership showroom and workshop facility with ancillary 

areas, outdoor vehicle display area, outdoor vehicle storage area and 

staff/customer parking areas with sections of additional 2.2m high wire 

mesh boundary fence

11

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Hatfields Land Rover Thornton Road Industrial Estate Road Pickering 

North Yorkshire YO18 7JX 

16/00901/MFUL

Erection of an agricultural building for storage purposes following 

demolition of existing barn

12

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: West Ings Bungalow New Road To Kirkdale Lane Kirkbymoorside North 

Yorkshire YO62 7HE 

16/00965/MFUL

Erection of 1no. five bedroom dwelling, 6no. four bedroom dwellings, 1no. 

three bedroom dwelling and 4no. two bedroom dwellings with associated 

garaging, parking, amenity areas and landscaping

13

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Peckets Yard East End Sheriff Hutton  

16/00013/MOUT

Residential development (Use Class C3) for 87no. dwellings

14

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: The Showfield Pasture Lane Malton North Yorkshire  

15/00423/OUT

Erection of 5no. detached dwellings and formation of vehicular access 

together with demolition of existing dwelling and buildings.

15

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land At Meadowfield  40 Thornton Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 

7HZ

Page 15



05/07/16

APPLICATIONS TO BE DETERMINED BY RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 

16/00902/73A

Variation of Condition 18 of approval 10/01367/FUL dated 15.04.2011 to 

replace drawing no. H/100/12/01 with drawing nos. H/100/12/01 REV A 

and H/100/12/15 to regularise timber clad garage as built

16

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Land North Of Greys Farm High Street Cropton Pickering North Yorkshire  

16/00936/HOUSE

Erection of single storey extension to detached garage following demolition 

of existing stable (revised details to approval 15/01059/HOUSE dated 

14.10.2015) (part-retrospective)

17

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Rose Cottage 2 South View Kirby Misperton Lane Great Habton Malton 

North Yorkshire YO17 6TU 

16/00941/FUL

Change of use and alterations to post office to form 1no. bedroom annexe 

together with formation of vehicular access and erection of close-boarded 

timber fence and gate to match existing

18

Application No:

Proposal:

Application Site: Shop 42 Beverley Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9BU 

Page 16



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

5 July 2016 

RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

SCHEDULE OF ITEMS TO BE DETERMINED BY THE COMMITTEE 
 

PLANS WILL BE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 30 MINUTES BEFORE THE MEETING 

 

 

 

Item Number: 7 

Application No: 16/00469/73A 

Parish: Normanby Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Non Compliance with Conditions 

Applicant: A & D Sturdy Ltd 

Proposal: Variation of condition 05 of approval 13/00817/FUL dated 04.09.2013 to add 

Drawing no. 230 316 1 Rev A and Variation of Condition 16 of the same 

approval to add Drawing no. 230 316 1 Rev A and to replace drawing no. 

2326/4 Rev A by Drawing no. 2326/4 Rev E and Variation of Condition 12 of 

the same approval to replace drawing no. 2326/4 Rev A by Drawing no. 2326/4 

Rev E - revisions relating to means of enclosure and landscaping 

(part-retrospective) 

Location: Willow House Main Street Normanby Kirkbymoorside YO62 6RH 

 

Registration Date: 29 March 2016 8/13 Week Expiry Date: 24 May 2016 

Case Officer: Tim Goodall Ext: 332 

 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council  
Parish Council No views received to date 

Highways North Yorkshire No objection 

Tree & Landscape Officer No views received to date 

Building Conservation Officer No objection 

 

 

Neighbour responses:  Mr David Jackson,Christina Blythe,Mr John 

Riddell,Josephine Jackson,Dr Peter Smith,Mr Graham 

Shail,Jennifer Marsland,Mr Peter Milner,Ann Milner, 

 Overall Expiry Date: 27 May 2016 

 
 

 

Members will be aware that this application was brought to Planning Committee for consideration in 

June 2016 and was deferred subject to a Committee site visit on 21st June 2016. The application is 

brought before members for consideration and determination. Please refer to the 7 June agenda papers. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The materials and design of all means of enclosure shall be retained  in accordance with 

drawing no 230 316 1  and maintained hereafter. 

 

 Reason:- To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 

neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by the 

National Planning Policy Framework and Policies SP16 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

  

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

5 July 2016 

2 No dwelling shall be occupied until the related parking facilities have been constructed in 

accordance with the approved drawing Site Plan 1:2500.  Once created, the parking areas that 

have been constructed in accordance with approved drawing Site Plan 1:2500, validated by 

the local planning authority 15 July 2013, shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and 

retained for their intended purpose at all times. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20; and to provide for adequate and satisfactory 

provision of off-street accommodation for vehicles in the interests of safety and the general 

amenity of the development 

 

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

 

 Site Location Plan, validated by the local planning authority 15 July 2013 

 Drawing No 230 316 1, validated by the local planning authority 29 Mar 2016 

 Drawing No 2326/4 rev E, validated by the local planning authority 26 May 2016 

 Drawing No 170 613 1, validated by the local planning authority 15 Jul 2013 

 Drawing No 170 613 3 A 

 Drawing No 170 613 5A 

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

  

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



Page 19



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 8 

Application No: 16/00729/MFUL 

Parish: Sand Hutton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: D & J A Jones 

Proposal: Erection of a 16,000 bird free range egg laying unit with 2 no. associated 

feed bins, parking/turning area and concrete apron 

Location: Gravel Pit Farm Sand Hutton Malton YO41 1LN 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  25 August 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  9 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire Conditions recommended  

Highways England No objection  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Countryside Officer Comments made  

Tree & Landscape Officer No objection  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objection  

NY Highways & Transportation Further information required  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 

 
Gravel Pit Farm is located just over 1km west of Sand Hutton village. 

 

The application site itself is located in an arable field immediately northwest of the farmstead.  The 

farm is currently accessed by a farm track from the road which links the A64 to Sand Hutton. To 

the west of the site is the recently approved Anaerobic Digestion Plant that is currently under 

construction.  Beyond that to the western side is a dense conifer plantation. Agricultural land is 

located to the northern and eastern sides with the existing farmstead on the southern side. 

 

The surrounding area is predominately agricultural, with the farmstead being located approximately 

1km from the A64. Less than 1km to the south-west of the farm is the Sand Hutton Applied 

Innovation Campus - a 27,800m² facility which houses businesses engaged in agriculture, food, 

biotechnology and science fields, including the HQ of the Food and Environment Research 

Agency.  Sand Hutton itself is around 10km north-east of York. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 16,000 bird free-range egg-laying unit with 2 

no. associated feed bins, parking/turning area and concrete apron. 

 

The proposed building will approximately measure 76m in length by 19.5m in width and be 5.5m 

to the ridge height.  It is located immediately to the north west of the existing farmstead with the 

range area for the birds being to the north of the building.  The proposed building will be clad in 

timber under polyester coated sheeting in a juniper green colour. The 2 no. feed bins are 6m in 

height and are proposed to be located  immediately to the south east of the building. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 8



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

HISTORY: 

 

2015: Planning permission granted for the variation of condition 05 of application 14/00709/MFUL 

as allowed by appeal APP/Y2736/A/14/2226293 dated 26.05.2015 to allow an increase of 6,500 

tonnes of grass silage feed stock per annum to give a total of 20,000 tonnes of grass silage feed 

stock per annum in addition to the 12,150 tonnes of Cattle FYM and 900 tonnes of chicken manure 

per annum. 

 

2015: Agricultural Notification approved for a building for the storage of produce 

 

2015: Planning permission granted on appeal for the installation of an anaerobic digestion and 

combined heat and power plant to include 3 no. tanks ancillary structures, silage clamps and 

digestate storage lagoon. 

 

2015: Planning permission granted for the installation of an anaeorobic digestion and combined 

heat and power plant to include 3 no. tanks ancillary structures, silage clamps and digestate storage 

lagoon. 

 

2008: Agricultural Notification approved for extension to existing agricultural building 

 

2005: Agricultural Notification approved for the erection of a general-purpose agricultural storage 

building 

 

2004: Agricultural Notification refused for the erection of a general-purpose agricultural storage 

building 

 

2003: Planning permission granted for the change of use of land for siting of 6no. timber eco-

camping pods and erection of amenity building. 

 

POLICY: 

 
National Policy Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 2012 

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) 2014 

 

Ryedale Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 

Policy SP1 - General Locations for Development 

Policy SP9 - Land Based Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main considerations in relation to this application are:- 

 

• The principle of the proposed development; 
• The siting, scale and design of the proposed building; 

• The impact of the proposal upon the character of the surrounding area; 

• Highway safety; 

• Impact upon the amenity of the adjoining properties; and 

Page 21



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

• Landscaping. 

 

This application has to be determined by Planning Committee as it is classed as a 'Major' 

application.  The application as originally submitted did not technically have the correct ownership 

Certificates, this has since been corrected. 

 

Policy SP9 of the Local Plan Strategy supports in principle the provision of new agricultural 

buildings to support the rural based economy. 

 

With new agricultural buildings Officers usually seek to ensure new buildings are sited adjacent to 

existing buildings to ensure that groups of buildings are created, instead of sporadic buildings 

scattered throughout the open countryside. In this case the building is located adjacent to the 

existing farmstead with the AD Plant to the west. Furthermore, there is extensive planting on the 

outer western side together with screening from the A64 in the far north. The siting of the proposed 

building is therefore considered to be acceptable in this case.  

 

The design of the proposed building is representative of other modern free range egg units 

approved within the District. The juniper green colour of the external sheeting is considered to be 

acceptable in this case. Whilst the proposed building is relatively long approximately measuring 

76m in length, it will have a relatively low roof height at 5.5m at its highest point. Given its close 

proximity to existing buildings and the surrounding landscaping it is not considered that the 

proposed development would have a material impact upon the character of the surrounding 

landscape. 

 

The Tree and Landscape Officer has no objection to the proposal given the existing screening 

surrounding the application site. 

 

The road network from which the site gains access is an unnamed road linking Sand Hutton with 

the A64. The Highway Authority and Highway England has considered the proposal along with the 

relatively low vehicular movements (1 feed delivery every 14 days and 2 egg collections every 

week). No objections have been received.  The Highways Authority has recommended conditions 

relating to the routing of construction vehicles; and precautions to prevent mud on the highway. 

 

Given the site’s separation from nearby residential properties it is not considered that the proposal 

would have an adverse effect upon the amenity of nearby properties. The Environmental Health 

Officer has not raised objections to the proposed. 

 

The agent has been asked to confirm the location of the 8ha range area and an additional plan has 

been submitted. A condition can be imposed requiring adherence to that plan, which prevents the 

produce building approved by Agricultural Notification last year being erected as well as this 

proposal. The applicant has also written to confirm that the Digestate Management Plan approved 

last year for the Anaerobic Digester remains unaffected by this proposal and the range area can be 

used for the spreading of Digestate. 

 

In addition, the question of how the applicant proposes to manage/supervise the unit has also been 

raised with the agent. It has been confirmed that the applicant can manage the unit without an 

additional dwelling on site.  A family member already resides at Gravel Pit Farm. 

 

No objections have been received to the application, in view of the above, the recommendation is 

one of approval. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

Page 22



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

2 Prior to the commencement of the development, precise details of the means of enclosure 

around the range shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

      

 Reason:- In order to protect the character of the area and to satisfy Policy SP20 of the Local 

Plan Strategy. 

  

 

3 Prior to the commencement of development, precise details of the location of where any 

manure from the development shall be stored shall be submitted to and approved in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority. 

      

 Reason:- In order to protect the amenity of surrounding properties and to satisfy Policy SP20 

of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

 

4 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, precise details of any 

external lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

      

 Reason:- In order to protect the character and appearance of the open countryside and to 

satisfy Policy SP20 of the Local Plan Strategy. 

  

 

5 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 

 

6 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

establishment of a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction on the site until details of the routes to be used 

by HCV operation traffic have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.  Thereafter, the approved 

routes shall be used by all vehicles connected with construction on the site. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and in 

the interests of highway safety and the general amenity of the area. 

 

7 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

   

 IP/DJ/01;IP/DJ/02;IP/DJ/023; IP/DJ/05 

   

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 

  

Page 23



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 9 

Application No: 16/00825/MFUL 

Parish: Sinnington Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Court House Farms Ltd (Mr Robert Wilson) 

Proposal: Erection of nursery building and finishing building for the housing of pigs 

Location: New Cliff House  Cross Lane Sinnington Pickering YO62 6SS 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  2 August 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  8 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Helen Bloomer Ext: 328 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards The Board has no comments to make  

Countryside Officer No views received to date  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend Conditions  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) The farmer does not require an Environmental Permit 

for the site.  

Land Use Planning No view received to date  

Environmental Health Officer Recommend condition  

Parish Council No view received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The application site is an existing  long established farmstead situated within the North York Moors 

Area of High Landscape Value to the south of Sinnington.  This farm comprises 815 acres of arable 

and grass land, and includes a farmhouse together with a range of modern and traditional storage and 

livestock buildings.   

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Planning permission is being sought for the erection of two agricultural buildings for the housing of 

pigs. The finishing building would be 887.13 sqm with a ridge height of 4.23 metres and the nursery 

building would be 467.96sqm with a ridge height of 4.34 metres. The materials would match those of 

the existing buildings. 

 

The existing buildings are a mix of straw based bedding and slat based. The two new buildings would 

be slat based with the holding tanks beneath the buildings. The waste material is then spread on land 

under the applicants ownership in line with DEFRAs Code of Good Agricultural Practice for the 

protection of water. Each building is supplied with food and water 24 hours a day, and the extractor 

system allows for the temperature inside the building to be regulated.   

 

The building will be sited adjacent to existing farm buildings and would be of the same scale and 

design as the existing buildings. They would largely be screened by existing buildings to the north, 

and by a mature belt of trees to the north and west. 

 

The existing farmstead  already has 12 existing pig buildings which have a total floor area of 6,340 

sqm  housing 3178 pigs. This breaks down to the following; 

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

700 Sows 

7 boars 

70 Maiden Gilts  

831 Weaners (7Kg-13Kg) 

1200Weaners (13Kg-30Kg) 

370 Growers (31Kg-66Kg)  

 

The two proposed buildings which would together have a total floor area of approximately 1,355sqm 

would allowing for the housing of the following; 

 

700 Sows 

7 boars 

70 Maiden Gilts  

2831 Weaners (7Kg-30Kg) 

870 Growers (31Kg-66Kg)  

500 Finishers (60Kg+) 

 

Totalling 4978 pigs. 

 

The increase of 1800 pigs  is due to the sows producing an increased number of piglets and the need 

to house 500 finishers on the site arising from the overcapacity of the applicants other five farmsteads. 

No more new pigs will be brought to the site.  

 

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

The application has been screened in accordance with the Environmental Impact Assessment 

Regulations . The screening determined that the development falls within development type 1(c) of 

Schedule 2 The Town and Country Planning (EIA) Regulations  2011 as amended. It is not a sensitive 

area as defined by the EIA Regulations, and given the understanding of the site environment, the 

submitted Manure Management Plan, and also taking account of the Environmental Permitting 

Regulations, the Local Planning Authority has determined that it is not EIA development. 

 

POLICY: 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 - The Land Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP16 - Design  

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic development management issues 

 

National Planning Guidance 

 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Policy Guidance  

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

i) Policy 

ii) Landscape Character 

iii) Residential Amenity 

iv) Surface water and ground water protection 

v) Highways 

 

 

Page 48



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

i. Policy 
 

This application is a 'Major' development because the proposed buildings have a floor area in excess 

of 1,000m2.  As such it is required to be determined by the Planning Committee. 

 

Policy SP9 (The Land Based and Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy as well 

as Paragraph 28 of the National Planning Policy Framework are supportive of economic growth in 

rural areas in order to create jobs and prosperity by taking a positive approach to sustainable new 

development.  

 

In this case the proposal is in connection with a well established farming enterprise, and the proposed 

would be well related to its existing operations.  There is considered to be no objection in principle to 

the proposal. 

 

ii. Landscape Character  
 

The site is situated on relatively flat land south of the A170 within the North York's Moors Area of 

High Landscape. Policy SP13 Landscapes, of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy seeks to protect 

both national and locally designated landscapes. It states that: 

 

The Yorkshire Wolds and Fringe of the Moors are valued locally for their natural beauty and scenic 

qualities. 

 

This protection does however need to be balanced against the support for the land based economy 

contained within Policy SP9 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  Due to the topography of the 

site and the exiting mature boundary treatments views onto the site from public vantage points would 

be limited. Where views can be obtained the proposed development would be seen in the context of 

the existing farmstead. 

 

Furthermore, this part of the AHLV running parallel to the A170 is characterised by large farmsteads 

with a variety of agricultural buildings. The applicant has however expressed willingness to plant 

some additional planting north of the proposed 'Finisher Buildings'. This would be considered to be a 

benefit and enhance the AHLV.  

 

iii. Residential Amenity 
 

The application site is in an area of open countryside. The nearest dwelling (in separate ownership)  is 

approximately 200 metres south east of the application site, which is an existing farmstead, with its 

own livestock. The farm also runs a Caravan Club site in a field approximately 120 metres east of the 

existing pig buildings. The Council have not received any complaints from any of the neighbouring 

properties in relation to smell, noise or flies resulting from the existing activities. The two new 

proposed buildings would be managed in the same manner.  It is not considered therefore that the 

proposed extension to the existing operations on the farm would have a significant adverse impact on 

the amenities of nearby occupiers.  

 

The application had been  accompanied by a Manure Management Plan. The Council's Environmental 

Health Officer has not objected to the application. They have however requested a condition in 

relation to the Manure Management Plan. The Manure Management Plan submitted as part of the 

application, is similar to that required under an environmental permit, designed to show that the 

output of manure is manageable without causing pollution. From an environmental health perspective 

it is also required that the MMP sets out a system of management of manure which is sufficient to 

control odour, flies etc. This type of  MMP is designed to protect residential amenity.   

 

iv. Surface water and ground water protection 
 

Given the scale of the proposed development, both The Environment Agency, and the Lead Local 

Flood Authority have been consulted on the application. The Environment Agency has no objection to 

Page 49



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

the development, but advises that an Environmental Permit is required for 750 sows or 2,000 

production pigs over 30kg. In this instance they have advised that the number of pigs is below the 

threshold and therefore a permit is not required. It is considered however that it would be appropriate 

to include an informative on any decision to remind the applicant of the requirement.  

 

The Internal Drainage Board have confirmed that no IDB watercourses would be affected by the 

proposals and therefore has no comments to make.  

 

v. Highways 

 

More pigs will remain on site and it is unlikely that there would be a significant increase in associated 

vehicular movements as a result of the proposed development. North Yorkshire County Council 

Highways Authority has raised no objection  to the proposed development. 

 

At the time of writing no other written representations have been received.  Members will be updated 

on the Late Papers or at the meeting if further representations are received. 

 

In light of the above assessment, the recommendation is one of approval.  

 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  Approval - Subject to the comments of outstanding  

    consultees 
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing number 6921 

 Drawing number 6922 

 Drawing number 4673 

 Site Location plan  

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

3 Prior the commencement of the development hereby permitted, a manure management plan 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 

building being first brought into use. The plan shall be submitted for review on a bi annual 

basis commencing on the 1st October 2016 or such longer period as may be agreed in 

writing with the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the development does not have an adverse impact on the existing 

amenities of neighbouring occupiers to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP20 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and before any part of 

the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of a landscaping and 

planting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  The scheme shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs and show areas to 

be grass seeded or turfed.  The submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall 

indicate numbers, species, heights on planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs 

including existing items to be retained.  All planting seeding and/or turfing comprised in the 

above scheme shall be carried out during the first planting season following the 

commencement of the development, or such longer period as may be agreed in writing by 

Page 50



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees or shrubs which, within a period of five years from 

being planted, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced 

in the next planting season with others of similar sizes and species, unless the Local 

Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the development hereby approved does not have a significant 

adverse impact on the character of the Area of High Landscape Value, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details of the proposed surface water 

drainage shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  

 Reason: To ensure proper drainage within the site of residential amenity in accordance with 

SP20 of the Ryedale Local Plan Strategy. 

 

INFORMATIVE:  

 
The applicant is advised to contact the Environment Agency, in relation to the Environmental 

Permitting Regulations. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 10 

Application No: 16/00834/MFUL 

Parish: Heslerton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr Derek Cornforth 

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for the housing of pigs 

Location: East Heslerton Wold Farm Whin Moor Lane West Heslerton Malton North 

Yorkshire YO17 8RT 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  11 August 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No objections  

Lead Local Flood Authority Lack of details of surface water management therefore 

unable to comment on the propriety of any proposals.  

Public Rights Of Way No views received to date  

Environmental Health Officer No objection - recommend condition  

Lead Local Flood Authority No objection  

Countryside Officer No objections  

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site is an existing  long established situated within the Wolds Area of High Landscape 

Value to the south of East Heslerton.  The farm comprises 473 acres of arable and grass land, and 

includes a farmhouse together with a range of modern and traditional storage and livestock buildings.   

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

The applicants currently rear and fatten approximately 3200 bed and breakfast pigs per annum. This 

includes the management, feeding, bedding and supervision of approximately 800 fattening pigs on a 

day to day basis. At present all the pigs are reared in an existing pig rearing building which has been 

specifically designed to house pigs in the correct welfare environment. Bedding straw from the 

applicants arable enterprise is used as part of the pig rearing business. The applicants also own a flock 

of breeding ewes.  

 

Permission is now sought for the erection of a further building to house approximately 1600 fattening 

pigs on a batch by batch basis.  The building will measure 48m by 30m with a ridge height of 9.2m. It 

will be constructed from box profiled plastisol sheeting in goosewing grey.  The new building will be 

a straw based system. The manure from the shed will be removed to the applicants bespoke manure 

storage building.  

 

The building will be sited adjacent to  existing farm buildings. It will be screened by existing 

buildings to the east, and by a mature belt of trees to the north and west.  

 

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Environmental Impact Assessment 

 

The application has been screened in accordance with the Environmental Impact Assessment 

Regulations . The screening determined that the development falls within development type 1(c) of 

Schedule 2  the Town and Country Planning (EIA) Regulations  2011 as amended. It is not a sensitive 

area as defined by the EIA Regulations, and given the understanding of the site environment, the 

submitted manure management plan, and also taking account of the Environmental Permitting 

Regulations, the Local Planning authority has determined that it is not EIA development. 

 

POLICY: 
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP9 The Land based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Policy SP16 Design 

Policy SP17 Managing Air Quality,  land and Water Resources 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

 

HISTORY: 

 
11/00134/FUL Permission granted for the change of use of agricultural land to form a horse ménage 

 

15/00340/AGNOT Agricultural notification determined for the erection of an agricultural building for 

the storage of straw based manure. 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The farm is long established, and comprises arable and livestock. It is therefore considered that the 

main material considerations are: 

 

• Principle of development 

• The impact of the development on the character of the Wolds Area of High Landscape 

Value 

• Impact on water quality 

• neighbour impact and; 

• highway considerations 

 

Principle of development 

 
Policy SP9 (The Land Based and Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy is 

supportive of new buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working 

countryside, including farming. Furthermore, Section 3 (Supporting a prosperous rural economy) of 

the National Planning Policy Framework is supportive of economic growth in rural areas in order to 

create jobs and prosperity by taking a positive approach to sustainable new development.  

In this case the proposal is in connection with a well established farming enterprise, and the proposed 

will be well related to its existing operations. 

 

Impact on Wolds Area of High Landscape Value 

 
The site is situated on raised land within the Wolds Area of High Landscape. Policy SP13 

Landscapes, of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy seeks to  protect both national and locally 

designated landscapes. It states that: 

 

Page 62



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

The Yorkshire Wolds and Fringe of the Moors are valued locally for their natural beauty and scenic 

qualities. 

 

This protection does however need to be balanced against the support for the land based economy 

contained within Policy SP9 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  Due to the topography of the 

site it  will  be visible from greater distances than would occur from a level site. Nevertheless, the 

western and northern side of the development will be  well screened by a substantial belt of mature 

trees. Furthermore the southern side of the building is screened by existing buildings on the farmstead. 

There will be limited views of the building from the east, but these will be so distant, that the building 

will not be easily discernible from the adjacent buildings at the site.  From the road and longer distant 

views to west there will be some discernible views. However there will be some reduction in impact 

by virtue of the existing hedge. It is considered however that some additional planting  between the 

gable end of the building, and the hedge would further mitigate any harm. 

 

Impact of development on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers 

 

The application site is in an area of open countryside, and indeed the nearest dwellings (in separate 

ownership)  lie just under half a kilometre from the site.  It is not considered therefore that the 

proposed extension to the existing operations on the farm would have a significant adverse impact on 

their amenities. This is in particular because the application is accompanied by a Manure Management 

Plan. The Council's Environmental Health Officer has not objected to the application, subject to the 

operations being carried out in accordance with the details contained within the Manure Management 

Plan. 

 

Highway Considerations 

 

It is likely that there will be an increase in vehicular movements, as a result of the proposed 

development. Nevertheless the applicant has provided some information to demonstrate that there 

may indeed be a reduction in overall lorry journeys. This is because the lorry will take a full load from 

the applicants farm, rather than the current position where it drives around to obtain a full load.  In 

either scenario, the Local Highways Authority has not objected to the development.  

 

Surface water and ground water protection 

 

Given the scale of the proposed development, both The Environment Agency,  and the Lead Local 

Flood Authority have been consulted on the application. The Environment Agency has no objection to 

the development, but advises that an Environmental Permit  is required for 750 sows or 2,000 

production pigs over 30kg. In this instance they have advised that the number of pigs is below the 

threshold and therefore a permit is not required. It is considered however that it would be appropriate 

to include an informative on any decision to remind the applicant of the requirement.  

 

The Lead Drainage Officer requested additional  information in relation to disposal of surface water 

and has confirmed that the use of soak ways is acceptable.    

 

Summary 

 

It is considered that the proposed development will increase the viability of the farm, and may lead to 

further staff opportunities. The impact of the development will not be significant on the environment, 

or have a material impact on the character of the Area of High Landscape Value.  There are no 

immediate neighbours. Accordingly, it is considered that the development satisfies the requirements 

of Policies SP9, SP13 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

Accordingly, the recommendation is one of approval. 

 

 

 

 

Page 63



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted 

details contained within Farm Building Justification Report and Appraisal, in particular with 

reference to the maximum number of pigs, cleaning out of the building, and the details of 

Manure Management. 

  

 Reason; To ensure that the development hereby approved does not have a significant 

adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers, or the environment. 

And to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP17 of the Ryedale Local Plan. 

 

3 The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted 

details in relation to surface water drainage. 

  

 Reason: In the interests of groundwater protection, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy 

SP17 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and before any part of 

the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of a landscaping and 

planting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority.  The scheme shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs and show areas to 

be grass seeded or turfed.  The submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall 

indicate numbers, species, heights on planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs 

including existing items to be retained.  All planting seeding and/or turfing comprised in the 

above scheme shall be carried out during the first planting season following the 

commencement of the development, or such longer period as may be agreed in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees or shrubs which, within a period of five years from 

being planted, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced 

in the next planting season with others of similar sizes and species, unless the Local 

Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that the development hereby approved does not have a significant 

adverse impact on the character of the Area of High Landscape Value, and to satisfy the 

requirements of Policy SP13 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

INFORMATIVE:  

 

The applicant is advised to contact the Environment Agency, in relation to the Environmental 

Permitting Regulations. 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 11 

Application No: 16/00848/MFUL 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Hatfields Group (Mr Gareth Williams) 

Proposal: Demolition of existing Land Rover showroom and workshop and erection 

of a Land Rover dealership showroom and workshop facility with 

ancillary areas, outdoor vehicle display area, outdoor vehicle storage area 

and staff/customer parking areas with sections of additional 2.2m high 

wire mesh boundary fence 

Location: Hatfields Land Rover Thornton Road Industrial Estate Road Pickering 

North Yorkshire YO18 7JX 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  9 August 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  17 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Alan Hunter Ext: Ext 276 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Parish Council No objection  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

Land Use Planning Recommend conditions  

Countryside Officer Recommend condition  

Lead Local Flood Authority Comments made  

Tree & Landscape Officer No views received to date  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

 
Neighbour responses: R D & B A Brown,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 
The application site contains a Land Rover dealership, including a workshop, parking area, and an 

external display area for vehicles to the northern side. There is also  a showroom with a glazed 

opening to the northern side. A main parking area is located to the southern side with an area of 

disused land containing heaped earth and vegetation. The site is accessed via a cul-de-sac on its 

western side, from within the Thornton Road Industrial Estate Employment site. The A170 runs along 

the northern boundary, with Butt Dyke Close Farm further to the east and existing industrial/business 

units situated along the western and southern sides of the application site. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 
Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing Land Rover showroom and workshop 

and erection of a Land Rover dealership showroom and workshop facility with ancillary areas, 

outdoor vehicle display area, outdoor vehicle storage area and staff/customer parking areas with 

sections of additional 2.2m high wire mesh boundary fence. 

 

It is proposed to construct the building of metal rainscreen cladding in Sunshine grey metallic and 

profiled metal cladding in silver (RAL 9006). The windows are proposed to comprise a double glazed 

planar glazing system. 

 

The proposed building will be 'L' shaped and have maximum dimensions of 55m in length and 54m in 

width and be 6.3m to the highest point.  The vehicle display area will feature 3 rows of vehicles for 

Page 70

Agenda Item 11



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

display and be located to the northern side facing onto the A170.  The showroom will be located 

behind the outside display area, featuring a large glazed area to 'frame' the vehicles.  The workshop 

areas will be located to the southern side with the parking areas also on the southern side. 

 

A cycle store and bin store are proposed to the eastern side of the proposed building. 

 

HISTORY: 

 
2015: Planning permission granted for the erection of an extension to existing showroom/workshop 

building to form vehicle showroom and ancillary offices and staff facilities together with 

refurbishment and alterations to existing building to form main workshop area with raising of walls to 

form parapet hiding the existing pitched roof and formalisation of external parking areas for vehicle 

display and staff/customer parking 

 

2001: Advertisement Consent granted for the display of one illuminated single letter sign, one 

internally-illuminated logo sign, one illuminated pylon sign, and one non-illuminated double-sided 

directional sign 

 

1997: Planning permission granted for the erection of an extension to form a new office/showroom 

entrance 

 

1995: Planning permission granted for the change of use  and alterations to existing agricultural 

building to form a vehicle store 

 

1994: Planning permission granted for the installation of a satellite dish to rear elevation - 

retrospective  

 

1990 - Planning permission granted for the erection of a car showroom 

 

1988: Outline planning permission renewed for industrial development 

 

1985: Outline approval for the erection of a detached dwelling and garage 

 

1985: Outline approval for industrial development 

 

1976: Outline planning permission refused for the demolition of an agricultural building and the 

construction of a meat marketing building   

 

POLICY: 

 
National Policy 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012) NPPF 

National Planning Policy Framework (2014) NPPG 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP6 - Delivery and Distributing of Employment Land and Premises 

Policy SP7 - Retailing 

Policy SP9 -  The Land-Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy 

Page 71



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 
The main considerations in relation to this application are: 

 

• The principle of the proposal; 

• The proposed  layout, design, scale and materials of the replacement building; 

• The impact of the proposal upon protected species; 

• Highway safety; 

• Drainage; and 

• Impact upon the amenity of the adjoining neighbours. 

 

The proposed building has a floor space in excess of 1,000m2 and is classed as a 'Major' application, 

the proposal therefore has to be determined by the Planning Committee.  

 

Principle 

The site at present contains an existing Land Rover dealership and workshop that employs 25 workers 

at the site. The proposal is to replace this building with a modern showroom/workshop in the 

corporate style. The site  is an allocated employment site and use already has the benefit of planning 

permission. There is already an approved element of vehicle retailing from this site.  The approval of 

this application will also retain the presence of Land Rover in Ryedale.  The principle of the 

development is therefore considered to be acceptable. 

 

Layout, design and scale and materials of the proposed building 

The existing building has a floor area of approximately  932m2 and the proposed building 2028m
2
. 

The height of the current building is 7.3m at its highest point and the proposed building is 6.3m at its 

height point. The proposal building is designed in a modern style to reflect the Jaguar Land Rover 

corporate. 

 

Policy SP16 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy expects new development will create high 

quality durable places, that are accessible, and well integrated into their surroundings.   

 

The proposed modern and contemporary design will enhance the current appearance of the site and it 

is considered to relate well to its surroundings. 

 

There is also a display area to the front (northern side) of the existing building, approximately in the 

same location as the proposed display area.  The rear parking and service areas are well screened from 

public vantage points.  A landscaping condition is recommended to enhance the scheme and soften 

some of the outside areas. 

 

Protected species impact 

An ecological survey has been undertaken. It has identified that there is a protected pond within 250m 

of the site that contains Great Crested Newts (a protected species).  The Countryside Management 

Officer has considered the survey and recommends a condition in respect of a Protected Species 

Licence being obtained prior to the commencement of the development. 

 

The Ecological survey also recommends the clearance of dense vegetation outside the bird breeding 

season (March - August), an informative  is recommended accordingly. 

 

Highway safety 

The proposal is to utilise the existing access from within the Thornton Road industrial estate. The 

local Highway Authority has been consulted and has no objection to the application subject to the 

imposition of standard planning considerations. No objections have been raised in relation to potential 

distraction to motorists on the A170, and it is noted that there are already vehicles displayed on the 

northern side of the site adjacent to the A170 in association with the lawful use of this site. 

 

 

Page 72



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Drainage 

The proposal is to drain both foul and surface water to the mains. Yorkshire Water has no objection to 

the discharge of foul water to the mains. However, they state that in order to drain surface water to the 

mains it must be demonstrated there is no option to use any other sustainable methods of draining 

surface water. Yorkshire Water has also recommended the imposition of standard planning conditions 

should the application be considered be considered favourably.  In addition, the Lead Flood Authority 

(NYCC) has stated that there is insufficient information available regarding surface water drainage.  

The agent's response to this is awaited and Members will be updated at the meeting. 

 

Impact upon the amenity of neighbouring uses 

There is a farm to the east, and industrial business units to the western and southern sides, with the 

A170 to the north. The replacement car showroom/workshop on this allocated employment site is not 

considered to adversely affect the amenity of nearby occupiers. 

 

Other issues 

The Town Council  has no objection to the proposal  and considers the ecological mitigation to be 

satisfactory. There has also been an objection raised from the occupiers of Butt Dyke Farm to the east, 

regarding the retention of their right of access through the application site for a neighbouring dwelling 

that requires access through the site. There appears to officers to be sufficient space within the layout 

plan to accommodate this vehicular right of access. However, this is a legal issue, between the 

respective landowners. The agent has confirmed that they will respond to this potential objection from 

the occupier of Butt Dyke Farm although to date no response has been received. 

 

In view of the above, and subject to the resolution of the drainage issue, the recommendation on this 

application is one of approval. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval - subject to resolution of outstanding surface 

    water drainage issues 

 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Notwithstanding the provision of any Town and Country Planning General Permitted or 

Special Development Order for the time being in force, the areas shown on Drawing 

Number A(PL)00 100 Rev. A for parking spaces, turning areas and access shall be kept 

available for their intended purposes at all times. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure these areas are kept available for their intended use in the interests of highway safety 

and the general amenity of the development. 

 

4 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority. These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 

Page 73



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority. These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  

 Reason: In accordance with policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and to 

ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 

 

5 The demolition of the existing buildings, construction of a new showroom and provision of 

car parking shall not in any circumstances commence unless the local planning authority has 

been provided with either:  

  

 a) A license issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 53 of The Conservation of 

Habitats and Species Regulations 2010 authorising the specified activity/development to go 

ahead; or  

  

 b) A statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does not 

consider that the specified activity/development will require a license. 

  

 Reason: In order to fully take account of protected species and to satisfy Policy SP14 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

6 No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of disposal of surface 

water drainage, including details of any balancing works and off-site works, have been 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Furthermore, unless otherwise 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no piped discharge of 

surface water from the development prior to the completion of the approved surface water 

drainage works. 

  

 Reason: To ensure that no surface water discharge takes place until proper provision has 

been made for its disposal and to satisfy Policy SP17 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan 

Strategy. 

  

7 Surface water from vehicle parking and hardstanding areas shall be passed through an 

interceptor of adequate capacity prior to discharge. Roof drainage should not be passed 

through any interceptor. 

  

 Reason: In the interest of satisfactory drainage and to satisfy Policy SP17 of the Ryedale 

Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

8 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of 

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs 

and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The 

submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on 

planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. All 

planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the 

first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

  

 Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply 

Page 74



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

with the requirements of Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

9 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 FALCO LOK - 500; FALCO SALL; A (PL) 01 111; A(PL) 01 110; A (PL) 01 210; A (PL) 

00 100 Rev.A; A (10) 00 100; A (PL) 00 - 000 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 12 

Application No: 16/00901/MFUL 

Parish: Welburn (Kirkbymoorside) Parish Meeting 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Mr William Shaw 

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for storage purposes following 

demolition of existing barn 

Location: West Ings Bungalow New Road To Kirkdale Lane Kirkbymoorside North 

Yorkshire YO62 7HE 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  19 August 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  22 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No objection  

Countryside Officer Informative to be attached to any permission  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The site is located within the wider open countryside on relatively flat land. It is located 

approximately 1.7 kilometres to the south west of the Market Town of Kirkbymoorside. The site is 

accessed via the A170, approximately 950 metres to the north of West Ings Bungalow. The nearest 

residential dwelling to the site is West Ings Farmhouse, located approximately 500m to north west of 

the proposed agricultural building. There are no public rights of way is close proximity to the site.  

 

PROPOSAL: 

 
Erection of an agricultural building for storage purposes following demolition of existing barn. 

 

The application is to be determined by Planning Committee as the floor area of the building exceeds 

1000 square metres (1005.84 square metres). 

 

The proposed building will measure 50.29m  in width, 20m  in depth, 6.5m to the eaves and 9.5m to 

the ridge. It will be constructed of Yorkshire Boarding to the sites, with 2m concrete panels from the 

ground and anthracite grey cement fibre roofing sheets, with 9 small roof lights on the north facing 

roof slope and 9 small roof lights on the south facing roof slope. A galvanised steel door with a width 

of 6m and a height of 5.5m is proposed on the western elevation.  

 

HISTORY: 

 
Relevant planning history includes: 

 
13/00908/FUL - Planning permission granted 27.09.2013 - Demolition of existing dwelling and barn 

to allow erection of replacement three bedroom dwelling and replacement general purpose agricultural 

building. 

 

Page 104

Agenda Item 12



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Members should note that the replacement dwelling has been built. However, the general purpose 

agricultural building has not been built as this application seeks a larger agricultural building.  

 

POLICY : 

 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 

Policy SP9 The Land Based and Rural Economy 

Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Policy SP16 Design 

Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development  

Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  

 

Chapter 3. Supporting a prosperous rural economy  

Chapter 7. Requiring good design 

Chapter 11. Conserving and enhancing the natural environment  

 

National Planning Practice Guidance (2014) 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations to be taken into account when considering the proposal are:  

 

i. The principle of development 

ii. Impact upon the character of the wider open countryside  

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity 

iv. Impact upon protected species 

v. Highway safety 

vi. Other matters  

vii. Conclusions 

 

i. The principle of development 

 

Policy SP9 (The Land Based and Rural Economy) of the Ryedale Plan – Local Plan Strategy is 

supportive of new buildings that are necessary to support land-based activity and a working 

countryside, including farming. Furthermore, Section 3 (Supporting a prosperous rural economy) of 

the National Planning Policy Framework is supportive of sustainable growth and expansion of all 

types of business and enterprise in rural areas, through well designed new buildings.  

 

The holding comprises of a total of 800 acres, with approximately 400 acres for arable and 400 acres 

for livestock. The applicants operate an agricultural contracting business, comprising of both arable 

and livestock farming . The proposed building will allow for the storage of large agricultural 

machinery that facilitates the agricultural contracting business.  It is considered that the principle of an 

agricultural storage building in this location and within the farmstead is considered acceptable. 

 

ii. Impact upon the character of the wider open countryside 

 

The surrounding area of the site is largely agricultural on relatively flat land. There is a hedgerow and 

trees  to the north of the proposed buildings, with open countryside to the east and south, with West 

Ings Bungalow to the west. There will be partial views of the roof of the proposed agricultural 

building when travelling in a southerly direction along the track towards West Ings Bungalow.  The 

roof will constructed of cement fibre sheets, with an anthracite grey which are considered acceptable 

in this location. Whilst it is noted that the building measures 9.5m  in ridge to allow for large 

agricultural machinery to enter it safely, it is considered that due to the traditional pitched roof design, 

the building being sited relatively closer to the main dwelling of West Ings Bungalow and the use of 

Page 105



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

materials, the proposed agricultural building will not be detriment to the character of the wider open 

countryside, complying with Policies SP13 and S16 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity 

 

The site is relatively isolated, with the nearest residential property West Ings Farmhouse, located 

approximately 500m to north west of the proposed agricultural building.. It is considered that due to 

the distance of this dwelling from the proposal, the proposal will not have a material adverse impact 

upon neighbouring amenity. This is in terms of being overbearing in presence, causing loss of light, 

loss of privacy, odour or noise, complying with Policy SP20 (Generic Development Management 

Issues) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

 

iv. Impact upon protected species 

 

The Countryside Officer has stated the following with regard to the proposal: 

 

The existing building which is to be demolished as part of this application is likely to have a low 

probability for bat habitation due to its timber construction. Whilst there is a small chance that bats 

may be using the building, I recommend that a bat informative be attached to any permission granted 

 

If planning permission is granted, the following informative will be attached to the Decision Notice: 

 

All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ( as 

amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under section 

41/42 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any bats or evidence of 

bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop immediately and Natural England 

contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 

( as Amended) and applied to whoever carried out the work. Contact details: Natural England, 4th 

Floor, Foss House, Kings Pool, 1 - 2 Peasholme Green, York, YO1 7PX Tel: 0300 060 1911 

 

v. Highway safety 

 

The Local Highway Authority has raised no objection to the proposal. The site is access off the A170 

and there is sufficient on site turning space for vehicles.  

 

vi. Other matters  

 

There has been no response from the Town Council or any other third parties with regard to the 

proposal.  

 

vii. Conclusion  

 

In light of the above considerations, the erection of an agricultural building for storage purposes 

following the demolition of existing barn is considered to satisfy the relevant policy criteria outlined 

within Policies SP9, SP13, SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and the 

National Planning Policy Framework.  

 

The proposal is therefore recommended for approval subject to the following conditions.  

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

Page 106



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Site Location Plan - date stamped 20.05.2016. 

 Proposed Floor Plan - Drawing Number WS20164-3. 

 Proposed Elevations and Block Plan - Drawing Number WS20164-2. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

INFORMATIVE:  
 

 All bats and their roosts are fully protected under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 ( as 

 amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000) and are further protected under 

 section 41/42 of the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010. Should any 

 bats or evidence of bats be found prior to or during development, work must stop 

 immediately and Natural England contacted for further advice. This is a legal requirement 

 under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as Amended) and applied to whoever carried 

 out the work. Contact details: Natural England, 4th Floor, Foss House, Kings Pool, 1 - 2 

 Peasholme Green, York, YO1 7PX Tel: 0300 060 1911 

 

Background Papers: 

  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 13 

Application No: 16/00965/MFUL 

Parish: Sheriff Hutton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application  Major 

Applicant: Daniel Gath Homes Limited (Mr D Gath) 

Proposal: Erection of 1no. five bedroom dwelling, 6no. four bedroom dwellings, 

1no. three bedroom dwelling and 4no. two bedroom dwellings with 

associated garaging, parking, amenity areas and landscaping 

Location: Peckets Yard East End Sheriff Hutton  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  31 August 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  18 July 2016 

Case Officer:  Helen Bloomer Ext: 328 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Archaeology Section Advise scheme of archaeological evaluation  

Housing Services No views received to date  

Land Use Planning No views received to date  

Environmental Health Officer No views received to date  

Building Conservation Officer No views received to date  

Historic England Comments made  

Countryside Officer Recommend condition  

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Recommend condition  

Tree & Landscape Officer Objection to some aspects  

Public Rights Of Way Recommend informative  

Flood Risk Object  

Foss Internal Drainage Board Conditions to be included  

Parish Council No views received to date  

Highways North Yorkshire No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses: Mr And Mrs D Pattison, Mr Ian McLeod, Mr John 

Whitworth, Mrs Pauline Morson, Mr Neil Hodges, E De 

Berrie, Ms Pauline McLeod, Mr John Bennett, Mrs 

Frances Widdowson, Mary Brant, Mr Michael Lawson, 

Ms Catherine Jones, Ms Susan A Perkins, Mrs Margaret 

Fisher, Mrs Sarah Douglas, Mr Richard Masefield, Mr 

Ian Foxley,  

 

 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 
The above application was validated on 1 June 2016. The site (currently used as a joinery workshop 

and Yorkshire Water pumping station) is located immediately adjacent to the eastern boundary of 

both the Sherriff  Hutton Development Limits and the designated Conservation Area. The Church of 

St Helens and The Holy Cross which is Grade I listed, is located on the southern boundary of the site 

on an elevated position. 

 

There are sensitivities associated with the location of the site and the development proposed. 

Furthermore, the application has so far resulted in letters of representation comprising 16 letters of 

objection. The Parish Council are also holding an open meeting to discuss the application. 

 

Page 112

Agenda Item 13



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

At this stage, given the early stage of processing the application, it is not possible to fully appraise the 

proposal and make a final recommendation to Members. 

 

It is anticipated that a full report will be brought before Members at Planning Committee on 2 August 

2016. However the application has been brought to this Committee Meeting to enable Members to 

consider whether to carry out a site visit in advance of the next meeting. 

 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Site Inspection  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 113



Page 114



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 14 

Application No: 16/00013/MOUT 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Appn. Type: Outline Application  Major 

Applicant: Commercial Development Projects/Fitzwilliam Trust Corp. 

Proposal: Residential development (Use Class C3) for 87no. dwellings 

Location: The Showfield Pasture Lane Malton North Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  7 April 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  17 February 2016 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer Comments and recommendations made and 

request for conditions to be added  

NY Highways & Transportation Conditions recommended  

Environmental Health Officer Conditions support  

Countryside Officer Recommend condition  

Sustainable Places Team (Yorkshire Area) No comments to make on this development  

Land Use Planning Conditions recommended  

Highways England No objection  

Archaeology Section A further scheme of archaeological evaluation should be 

undertaken  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No objection  

Parish Council Recommend refusal  

 
Neighbour responses: Mr Ian Conlan, Paula Riley, Simon Thackray,  

 

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The showfield site at Pasture Lane, Malton is comprised of two parcels of farmland, together with a 

small group of disused farm buildings. Pasture Lane abuts the southern site boundary with the A64 

trunk road, forming the northern site boundary. To the east at lower level, is the established Showfield 

Lane industrial estate and to the west is Outgang Road, an un-surfaced lane which runs from 

ShowfieldLane and which crosses the A64. 

  

Further to the west is a substantial housing estate under construction by Taylor Wimpey Ltd. Three 

separate residential properties are located adjacent to the south-western corner of the site. The site 

generally falls from west to east and it is also elevated above the ground levels on Showfield Lane 

industrial estate. The land also rises from south to north across the parcel of land denoted as ‘show 

ground’. 

 

The first phase of development  on the site has commenced and is being built by Linden Homes. A 

further Phase 2 is expected under a further approval of reserved matters that will utilise the extent of 

the earlier planning permission. 

 

Plans showing this site location are attached for Members information. 

 

 

 

Page 115

Agenda Item 14



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

PROPOSAL: 

 

This application is a further outline application which seeks planning permission for an increase of up 

to 87 dwellings on the northern extent of the Showfield site. The effect of this application would be to 

increase the permitted numbers of dwellings from 227 to 314. 

 

The application is accompanied by a covering letter from the agents setting out the rationale and 

justification for  the application. (see copy of letter appended to this report). 

 

The application is accompanied by the following documents:- 

 

Design and Access Statement 

Transport Assessment 

Air Quality Assessment 

Flood Risk and Drainage Statement 

And a Masterplan 

 

In addition, the earlier technical reports relating to Noise; Geo Environmental Report, Archaeological 

Report, Ecological Report, Arboricultural Report and Landscape & Visual Assessment remain 

relevant to the current application.  

 

The technical documents can be viewed on the Councils' website. 

 

A copy of the approved plan for 14/00427, the approved  layout for 15/00616 Phase 1 and the 

Masterplan for this application is appended for Members information. 

 

RELEVANT  DEVELOPMENT PLAN POLICY: 
 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

Policy SP1 - General Location of Development and Settlement Hierarchy 

Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

Policy SP3 - Affordable Housing 

Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Policy SP10 - Physical Infrastructure 

Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services 

Policy SP12 - Heritage 

Policy SP13 - Landscapes 

Policy SP14 - Biodiversity 

Policy SP15 - Green Infrastructure Networks 

Policy SP16 - Design 

Policy SP17 - Managing Air Quality, Land and Water Resources 

Policy SP19 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and the Community Infrastructure Levy 

 

HISTORY: 

 

14/00427/MOUTE  Outline planning permission of circa 227 dwellings 

    and associated works    March 2015 

 

15/00616/REM  Revised matters approval for Phase 1 (174 units)  

   (Approx 28 units / ha)            September 2015 

 

 

 

APPRAISAL AND RECOMMENDATION:  To Follow  
 

Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 15 

Application No: 15/00423/OUT 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Appn. Type: Outline Application 

Applicant: Mr Phil Cook 

Proposal: Erection of 5no. detached dwellings and formation of vehicular access 

together with demolition of existing dwelling and buildings. 

Location: Land At Meadowfield  40 Thornton Road Pickering North Yorkshire 

YO18 7HZ 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  16 June 2015  

Overall Expiry Date:  24 May 2016 

Case Officer:  Gary Housden Ext: 307 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend Conditions  

Vale Of Pickering Internal Drainage Boards No further comments  

Land Use Planning Recommend condition  

Countryside Officer Recommend Condition  

Economic Development   
Environmental Health Officer Concerns regarding noise - conditions recommended if 

permission granted    

Archaeology Section No known archaeological constraint  

Parish Council No objection in principle, but concerns regarding 

vehicular movements and noise  

North Yorkshire Police Architectural Liaison Officer No comments on application  

Neighbour responses: John & Amanda Clifton, Ms Pam Northcote, Mrs Valerie 

Pell, Stephen Williams, Mr Darren Hugill, Alan 

Collinson, CK Mercer, Mr Edward Atkinson, Mr Mike 

Potter,  

 

 

 

SITE: 
 

The application site is located on the western edge of the town, to the south of the A170. It is situated 

between the built up area of the dwellings located to the south side of the 'A' road and the western 

extremity of Thornton Rd industrial estate The land owned by the applicants extends to approximately 

1.6 hectares in total and includes No 40 Thornton Rd (a single storey dwelling and its curtilage) and 

an adjacent paddock which extends some 185 metres to the south where it meets the boundary of 

Phase 2 of Thornton Rd industrial estate.  There are mix of single and two storey dwellings in the 

vicinity of the site to the north and south of the A170. The nearest dwelling to the site No.36 is single 

storey.   

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

This application was originally submitted in 2015 as a 'Major' outline application for 26 no dwellings 

and 7 business units. Much of the application site as originally submitted lay outside of 'saved' 

development limits of the town and the application site directly abutted the adjacent industrial estate.  

A significant number of objections were received to the plans as originally submitted which resulted 

in significant changes to the scheme. These comments can be seen on the Council's website. 

 

Page 153

Agenda Item 15



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Amended plans were received in May 2016 which significantly reduced the extent of the application 

site and the amount of development proposed. It is no longer a major application. The proposal has 

been reduced to show the erection of five detached dwellings only and all of these are located within 

the extent of the town's 'saved' development limits.  The developable area of the land is approximately 

0.26ha with a frontage of approximately 120 metres along Thornton Rd.  The nearest proposed 

dwelling is located around 35 metres from the curtilage of the nearest business unit to the east. 

 

The dwellings would be served by 3 No. accesses as shown although there are already two existing 

vehicular accesses from the land onto A170 from No 40 Thornton Rd and the adjacent land. 

 

Access has been submitted as part of the application although all other matters have been reserved for 

future approval if planning permission is granted. To assist the consideration of the application  an 

illustrative street scene drawing has been produced by the applicants to demonstrate how the site 

might appear if developed in the format shown on the submitted layout plan. 

 

The application was originally accompanied by a series of technical reports including a Flood Risk 

Assessment, a Noise Assessment, an Ecological Assessment, A Transport Assessment and a Planning 

Support Statement.  Members will appreciate that the proposals have been significantly altered and a 

revised statement in the form of a letter from the applicants agent dated  29th April has been 

submitted to accompany the revised reduced scheme. 

 

The agents letter is appended to this report and the technical reports can be viewed on the Council's 

website 

 

HISTORY: 
 

10/01069/MFULE  -  Demolition of existing dwelling and the erection of 6no. five-bedroom 

dwellings, 43no. four-bedroom dwellings, 21no. three-bed dwellings, 41no. two-bedroom dwellings 

and 5no. one-bed dwellings with associated garages and parking spaces, areas of public open space, 

play area and formation of vehicular access.   

 

Refused 8.9.10 Dismissed on appeal. Member will note that this scheme was for a much larger 

development of over 100 dwellings most of which lay outside of the identified development limits. 

 

POLICY: 
 

The following adopted development plan policies are considered to be relevant to this application. 

 

Ryedale Plan - Local plan Strategy Adopted September 2013 

 

APPRAISAL: 

 

The following considerations are relevant to the determination of the application; 

 

• Principle of development 

• Design /layout issues 

• Form and character/landscape impact 

• Access/Highway safety 

• Noise 

• Ecology 

• Flood risk/Drainage  

• Residential Amenity  

• Other matters including affordable housing and contributions 

 

 

 

Page 154



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

Principle of Development  

 

The site is (as amended) located within the 'saved' development limits of Pickering. Pickering is 

identified as a Local Service Centre(Market Town) and is a secondary focus for growth as set out in 

the adopted development plan. The town is identified as a place where around 25% of new housing 

land allocations will occur for the plan period.  In the circumstances it is considered that there is no 

objection in principle to the proposal to erect 5 No. dwellings as proposed on the application site.   

 

Form and Character/ Landscape Impact 
 

The site is located within the identified town development limits and the linear form of development 

proposed follows the pattern of existing residential development which fronts onto both sides of the 

A170 to the west of the site.  In terms of form and character the development is considered to be in 

keeping with existing established street scene and the proposal is therefore considered to accord with 

Policies SP16 and SP20 of the adopted plan.   The site is currently an extended garden area and land 

belonging to No 40 Thornton Road which is well screened by exiting hedgerows.  Whilst some of this 

will be removed to facilitate improved access to the site some will be retained as part of the 

redevelopment of the site.  The site is not identified as being of any special landscape character and 

the visual impact of the new dwellings within the development limits is considered to be localised and 

of limited impact. The proposal is considered to be acceptable in terms of  Policy SP13 of the adopted 

plan  

 

Design / Layout issues 

 

Members will appreciate that layout, scale and appearance have been reserved for further 

consideration.  However the illustrative plans show that five detached two storey dwellings can be 

accommodated on the site. The illustrative street elevation shows that adequate space can be provided 

between the individual blocks of buildings so that the resulting development will sit comfortably in 

the street scene.  A gap of approximately 15 metres is shown between the side wall of No 36 Thornton 

Rd and the side wall of the first dwelling shown on Plot 1. Whilst there is a mix of two storey and 

single storey development in the vicinity of the site there is a predominance of two storey dwellings 

overall and the scheme as illustrated shows all two storey dwelling is considered to be acceptable in 

visual terms.  It is noted that the approach into the town is also set in the context of the existing 

industrial estate further to the east which is characterised by large scale industrial buildings.   

 

The site is also currently screened by a tall hedgerow fronting the A170 which (aside from the 

sections to be removed to provide one new access and to amend one existing access) will further assist 

in screening the new development proposed. 

 

Whilst submitted in outline the proposal is considered to be compliant with Policies SP16 and SP20 in 

terms of the designs approval. 

  

Access/ Highway safety 
 

The revised application has been considered by officers at NYCC Highways who note that the 

required vision splays for the access point onto the A170 are 57 metres x 2.4 metres as set out in 

Manual For Streets2.  The available visibility is 80 metres x 2.4 metres which is well in excess of the 

specified standard.  Subject to conditions no objections is raised to the application on highway safety 

grounds. 

 

Noise 
 

A noise assessment was submitted as part of the application submission in response to previous 

concerns expressed about both traffic and industrial noise from the adjacent A170 and businesses on 

the adjacent employment area.  It is of note that circumstances have changed significantly since the 

consideration of the earlier application which was refused and dismissed on appeal (see history 

Page 155



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

section of this report). The residential element of this proposal has also been much reduced during the 

consideration of the application. In addition the nearest dwelling is now located approximately 

35metres away from the nearest industrial unit.  It is of note that this industrial unit was previously 

occupied by Micrometalsmiths and that there was at the time an extant planning permission for a 

significant extension (including a foundry) on the premises. The current site operator is a builders 

merchant that operates between 07.30 to 17.00 Mondays to Fridays and 08.00 to 12.00 on Saturdays 

only which differs significantly from the previous occupiers 24 hour usage of the site. 

 

In response to the reconsultation process Northern General Properties have responded  raising 

concerns that the new residential development might have on their existing and future activities. 

 

The applicant's agent has responded to the points raised and in their email of 25.5.2016 set out their 

thoughts in response (see attached copy). 

 

The Council's EHO has previously expressed concerns about the general relationship between 

industrial/commercial uses and dwellings. There are however several instances in the District where 

the Council has been able to grant planning permission subject to the imposition of noise conditions to 

control noise levels within garden areas during the day and in habitable rooms at night to provide 

adequate protection from all sources of noise.  

 

The Council's EHO has therefore recommended if permission is granted that the following detailed 

noise conditions are impose on the outline planning permission to adequately protect the amenities of 

future residents. The details of the reserved matters scheme would then need to demonstrate 

accordance with these requirements. 

 

1. Construction of the dwellings hereby permitted shall not begin until a written scheme for 

protecting the proposed residential development from both traffic noise and industrial noise 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 

shall ensure that the noise level in the external amenity areas of the proposed properties shall 

not exceed 50 dB LAeq (16 hour) between 0700 hours and 2300 hours, for traffic noise, and 

shall protect against levels of rated industrial sound (in accordance with BS4142:2014), more 

than 5dB above background. All works which form part of this scheme shall be completed 

before any part of the development is occupied. The works provided as part of the approved 

scheme shall be permanently retained and maintained as such except as may be agreed in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The aforementioned written scheme shall 

demonstrate that the noise levels specified will be achieved. 

 

2. Construction of the dwellings hereby permitted shall not begin until a written scheme for 

protecting the internal environment of the dwellings from noise has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall ensure that the 

building envelope of each plot is constructed so as to provide sound attenuation against 

external noise. The internal noise levels achieved should not exceed 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) 

inside the dwelling between 0700 hours and 2300 hours and 30 dB LAeq (8 hour) and 45 dB 

LAmax in the bedrooms between 2300 and 0700 hours. This standard of insulation shall be 

achieved with adequate ventilation provided. All works which form part of the scheme shall 

be completed before any part of the development is occupied. The works provided as part of 

the approved scheme shall be permanently retained and maintained as such except as may be 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The aforementioned written scheme shall 

demonstrate that the noise levels specified will be achieved, with windows partially open for 

ventilation.  Where reliance is made on achieving this standard using greater than 12dB 

attenuation external to internal, details of appropriate window design to be used, referencing 

studies to demonstrate the noise reduction, shall be submitted. 

 

Ecology 
 

The submitted information has been assessed by the Council's Countryside Management Officer and 

is considered to be acceptable.  Conditional approval is recommended. 

Page 156



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

Flood Risk/Drainage 

 

The relevant organisations have been consulted including the EA, Lead Local Flood Authority, Local 

Internal Drainage Board and Yorkshire Water. 

 

No objections are raised on grounds of flood risk - the site is located in Flood Zone 1 and is a minor 

development. Yorkshire Water have recommended separate systems for foul and surface water 

drainage and details of surface water disposal to be agreed to be the subject of conditions if planning 

permission is granted. 

      

Residential Amenity  

 

The site located next to a single storey dwelling - No. 36 Thornton Rd. It is noted that the occupier 

whilst not objecting to the scheme has raised some points of concern. The neighbour has requested 

that no windows should directly overlook his living room and that sufficient space for maintenance of 

the new property on Plot 1 is designed into the scheme. It is considered that the illustrative spacing 

between the properties is acceptable and that these concerns relating to matters of privacy can be 

adequately controlled at reserved matters stage.  It is recommended however that an informative is 

added to the outline permission if permission is granted to draw this matter to the attention of a future 

developer of the site. 

 

The layout shows that adequate amenity space can be provided for the occupiers of the new dwellings 

and the proposal is considered to satisfy Policies SP16 and SP20 of the local plan strategy. 

 

Consultation Responses 
 

Following the significant amendment to the scheme, reducing the proposal to the erection of 5no. 

dwellings, the number of third party comments has diminished to three responses.  These can also be 

viewed on the Council's website but are summarised below. 

 

Occupier of No. 36 Thornton Road 

 

No objection in principle but comments made relating to the relationship of the building on Plot 1 and 

possibility of overlooking windows, future maintenance.  Suggests extending the 30mph limit. 

 

Occupier of No. 30 Thornton Road 

 

Refers to earlier refusal and appeal relating to application 10/01069/MFULE.  Concern over 

relationship between residential and nearby industrial users and objects over the principle, 

notwithstanding the reduced scale of the development. 

 

Northern General Properties 

 

Acknowledges that the dwellings would be within the development limit but is concerned with 

potential impact on users on the industrial estate, referring to the earlier application and appeal 

decision.  Therefore, objects to the proposal which might limit or prejudice future activity. 

 

The Town Council has no objection in principle but has expressed some detailed concerns relating to 

vehicular access and noise. 

 

These issues have, however, been addressed in the appraisal section of this report and subject to the 

imposition of appropriate conditions, the development is considered to be acceptable. 

 

 

 

 

Page 157



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

OTHER MATTERS 

 

The application is for the erection of 5 No. dwellings.  Members will be aware of the recent Court of 

Appeal decision relating to the West Berkshire and Reading High Court case.  In the light of the Court 

of appeal decision relating to developer contributions from small sites no affordable housing 

contributions can be sought from this scheme in the light of the Multi-national decision and the recent 

changes to national planning guidance.   

 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

 Approval subject to the following conditions. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 Application for approval of reserved matters shall be made to the Local Planning Authority 

not later than . 

  

 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before whichever is the later of the 

following dates:- 

  

 The expiration of two years from the final approval of the reserved matters or (in the case of 

approval on different dates) the final approval of the last such matters approved. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004. 

 

2 No development shall take place without the prior written approval of the Local Planning 

Authority of all details of the following matters:- 

  

 (i)     the layout, scale and appearance of every building, including a schedule of external 

materials to be used 

  

 (ii)   the landscaping of the site 

  

 Reason:- To safeguard the rights of control by the Local Planning Authority in respect of the 

reserved matters. 

 

3 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site until the access(es) to the site have been set out and constructed in 

accordance with the published Specification of the Highway Authority and the following 

requirements: 

  

 (a) The crossing of the highway verge and/or footway shall be constructed in accordance 

with the approved details and/or Standard Detail number E6. 

  

 (b) Any gates or barriers shall be erected a minimum distance of 6 metres back from the 

carriageway of the existing highway and shall not be able to swing over the existing or 

proposed highway. 

  

 (c) Provision to prevent surface water from the site/plot discharging onto the existing or 

proposed highway in accordance with the approved details and maintained thereafter to 

prevent such discharges.  

  

 (d) The final surfacing of any private access within 2 metres of the public highway shall not 

Page 158



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

contain any loose material that is capable of being drawn on to the existing or proposed 

public highway. 

  

 (e) Provision of tactile paving in accordance with the current Government guidance. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and to ensure a satisfactory means of access to the site from the public highway in the 

interests of vehicle and pedestrian safety and convenience. 

 

4 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until splays are provided 

giving clear visibility of 57m measured along both channel lines of the major road A170 

from a point measured 2.4m down the centre line of the access road.  The eye height will be 

1.05m and the object height shall be .06m.  Once created, these visibility areas shall be 

maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all times. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and in the interests of road safety. 

 

5 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site (except for the purposes of constructing the initial site access) until visibility splays 

providing clear visibility of 2 metres x 2 metres measured down each side of the access and 

the back edge of the footway of the major road have been provided.  The eye height will be 

1.05 metres and the object height shall be 0.6 metres.  Once created, these visibility areas 

shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their intended purpose at all 

times. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and the interests of road safety to provide drivers of vehicles using the access and other 

users of the public highway with adequate inter-visibility commensurate with the traffic 

flows and road conditions. 

 

6 Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

excavation or other groundworks, except for investigative works, or the depositing of 

material on the site in connection with the construction of the access road or building(s) or 

other works hereby permitted, until full details of the following have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority: 

  

 (a) tactile paving 

 (b) vehicular, cycle and pedestrian accesses 

 (c) vehicular and cycle parking 

 (d) vehicular turning arrangements 

 (e) manoeuvring arrangements 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and to ensure appropriate on-site facilities in the interests of highway safety and the general 

amenity of the development. 

  

7 No part of the development shall be brought into use until the approved vehicle access, 

parking, manoeuvring and turning areas approved under condition 6: 

  

 (a) have been constructed in accordance with the submitted detailed drawings and in 

accordance with Standard Detail Number E6 

  

 Once created, these areas shall be maintained clear of any obstruction and retained for their 

intended purpose at all times. 

Page 159



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and to provide for appropriate on-site vehicle facilities in the interests of highway safety and 

the general amenity of the development. 

  

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 

Development Order 1995 or any subsequent Order, the garage(s) shall not be converted into 

domestic accommodation without the granting of an appropriate planning permission. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and to ensure the retention of adequate and satisfactory provision of off-street 

accommodation for vehicles generated by occupiers of the dwelling and visitors to it, in the 

interest of safety and the general amenity of the development. 

 

9 There shall be no access or egress by any vehicles between the highway and the application 

site until details of the precautions to be taken to prevent the deposit of mud, grit and dirt on 

public highways by vehicles travelling to and from the site have been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These facilities shall include the provision of wheel washing facilities where 

considered necessary by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway 

Authority.  These precautions shall be made available before any excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction commences on the site, and be kept available 

and in full working order and used until such time as the Local Planning Authority in 

consultation with the Highway Authority agrees in writing to their withdrawal. 

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and to ensure that no mud or other debris is deposited on the carriageway in the interests of 

highway safety. 

 

10 Unless approved otherwise in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no 

establishment on a site compound, site clearance, demolition, excavation or depositing of 

material in connection with the construction of the site, until proposals have been submitted 

to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the provision of: 

  

 (i) on-site parking capable of accommodating all staff and sub-contractors vehicles clear of 

the public highway 

  

 (ii) on-site materials storage area capable of accommodating all materials required for the 

operation of the site. 

  

 The approved areas shall be kept available for their intended use at all times that 

construction works are in operation.   

  

 Reason:- In accordance with Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

and to provide for appropriate on-site vehicle parking and the storage facilities, in the 

interests of highway safety and the general amenity of the area. 

  

11 The site shall be developed with separate systems of drainage for foul and surface water on 

and off site. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of satisfactory and sustainable drainage, and to satisfy Policy SP19 

of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

12 No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of disposal of surface 

water drainage, including details of any balancing work and off-site works have been 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Furthermore, unless 

otherwise approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, there shall be no piped 

Page 160



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

discharge of surface water from the development prior to the completion of the approved 

surface water drainage works. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that no surface water discharges take place until proper provision has 

been made for its disposal, and to satisfy Policy SP19 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 

13 Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, or such longer period as may be 

agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, details and samples of the materials to 

be used on the exterior of the building the subject of this permission shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP16 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

14 Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted, the developer shall 

construct on site for the written approval of the Local Planning Authority, a one metre 

square free standing panel of the external walling to be used in the construction of building. 

The panel so constructed shall be retained only until the development has been completed 

  

 Reason: To ensure a satisfactory external appearance and to satisfy the requirements of 

Policy SP16 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

15 Construction of the dwellings hereby permitted shall not begin until a written scheme for 

protecting the proposed residential development from both traffic noise and industrial noise 

has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme 

shall ensure that the noise level in the external amenity areas of the proposed properties shall 

not exceed 50 dB LAeq (16 hour) between 0700 hours and 2300 hours, for traffic noise, and 

shall protect against levels of rated industrial sound (in accordance with BS4142:2014), 

more than 5dB above background. All works which form part of this scheme shall be 

completed before any part of the development is occupied. The works provided as part of 

the approved scheme shall be permanently retained and maintained as such except as may be 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The aforementioned written scheme shall 

demonstrate that the noise levels specified will be achieved. 

  

 Reason:- To satisfy Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

  

16 Construction of the dwellings hereby permitted shall not begin until a written scheme for 

protecting the internal environment of the dwellings from noise has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall ensure that the 

building envelope of each plot is constructed so as to provide sound attenuation against 

external noise. The internal noise levels achieved should not exceed 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) 

inside the dwelling between 0700 hours and 2300 hours and 30 dB LAeq (8 hour) and 45 dB 

LAmax in the bedrooms between 2300 and 0700 hours. This standard of insulation shall be 

achieved with adequate ventilation provided. All works which form part of the scheme shall 

be completed before any part of the development is occupied. The works provided as part of 

the approved scheme shall be permanently retained and maintained as such except as may be 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The aforementioned written scheme shall 

demonstrate that the noise levels specified will be achieved, with windows partially open for 

ventilation.  Where reliance is made on achieving this standard using greater than 12dB 

attenuation external to internal, details of appropriate window design to be used, referencing 

studies to demonstrate the noise reduction, shall be submitted. 

  

 Reason:- To satisfy Policy SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

17 Before any part of the development hereby approved commences, plans showing details of 

landscaping and planting schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 

Page 161



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Local Planning Authority. The schemes shall provide for the planting of trees and shrubs 

and show areas to be grass seeded or turfed where appropriate to the development. The 

submitted plans and/or accompanying schedules shall indicate numbers, species, heights on 

planting, and positions of all trees and shrubs including  existing items to be retained.. All 

planting, seeding and/or turfing comprised in the above scheme shall be carried out in the 

first planting season following the commencement of the development, or such longer 

period as may be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or shrubs 

which, within a period of five years from being planted, die, are removed or become 

seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of 

similar sizes and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 

variation. 

  

 Reason: To enhance the appearance of the development hereby approved and to comply 

with the requirements of Policy SP16 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

18 Before the commencement of the development hereby permitted, or such longer period as 

may be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority, full details of the materials and 

design of all means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority. Thereafter these shall be erected prior to the occupation of any dwelling 

to which they relate. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the development does not prejudice the enjoyment by the 

neighbouring occupiers of their properties or the appearance of the locality, as required by 

Policy SP16 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

19 All works shall be carried out in accordance with the details contained in the Ecological 

Appraisal section 4 ( Quants 2014) for Land at Meadowfields 40 Thornton Road, Pickering.  

This should include provision of a bat survey prior to demolition of the existing buildings, 

suitable timing of removal of vegetation to protect nesting birds and the provision of hedge, 

bird and bat habitat enhancements as set out in the report. 

  

 Reason:- To satisfy Policy SP14 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

20 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s):. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

INFORMATIVE:  

 
 In relation to Condition 05, an explanation of the terms used above is available from the 

Highway Authority. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



1

Chris Morris

Subject: FW: 15/00423/MOUT - Land at Meadowfield, 40 Thornton Road, Pickering

 

From: Claire Richards [mailto:claire.richards@aahplanning.com]  

Sent: 25 May 2016 15:07 
To: Gary Housden 

Subject: RE: Letter for attention of Gary Housden, Head of Planning and Housing 

 

Dear Gary,  

 

Thank you for your email. 

 

Should the council consider noise attenuation to be necessary this can be provided within the reserved matters and 

through the build of the dwelling with appropriate mitigation. 

 

A full noise assessment has been submitted with the application as part of ongoing discussions. In addition to this, a 

further noise response was submitted to Ryedale Council on the 8th December 2015 responding to further points 

raised by the Councils Environmental Health Officer. The scheme has now been significantly reduced from that 

which was submitted and even more so from the scheme which was dismissed at appeal. The proposal is 

significantly different to the appeal proposal and should be determined on its own merits. It is now proposed to 

build 5 properties in a linear character fronting Thornton Road. There are currently no proposals to develop the land 

which abuts the nearby industrial estate which was proposed in the appeal proposals. The submitted noise 

assessment has demonstrated that a larger development comprising 9 dwellings would be acceptable as such based 

on the proposals positioning on the revised plan the dwellings within the location proposed these dwellings would 

also conform. Reference has been made regarding the proposal and the appeal which was dismissed on this site 

however when the appeal was considered the circumstances surrounding the application site and the proposal its 

self are significantly different.  

 

Firstly the proposal is significantly reduced proposing 5 dwellings as opposed to the 43 proposed in the appeal 

proposal. Additionally the positioning of Mircosmith Metals - and its extension and relocation from the 

Kirbymoorside Site - was a cause for concern within the previous application. When considering the appeal, 

Mircosmith Metals had a valid unimplemented planning permission, reference 11/00660ETM. This permission 

extended the time frame of application reference 08/00487MFUL, which granted planning permission for the 

erection of a two-storey extension to the north elevation, and a part-two-storey/part-single-storey office extension 

to the east elevation. Also included was a linked two-storey flat-roofed foundry building, refuse and cycle store, 

alterations to car parking layout with additional spaces, and the formation of additional vehicular access. The 

planning permission allowed for a significant expansion of the existing businesses in order to allow the relocation of 

the business from Kirkbymoorside. This planning permission has now expired and Mircosmith Metals no longer 

reside at the application site as such this element of concern no longer exists.  

 

Thirdly the neighbouring site has now been taken over and a recent application approved under application 

reference 15/00684/FUL. When considering the proposed development and it’s the impact upon amenity the officer 

report states “the site is within a pre-existing industrial estate with no immediate residential dwelling”. The 

neighbouring property is owned by the applicant and is located at a distance of 40 metres from the application as 

such this relationship with residential properties has been recently considered acceptable by the council.  The 

revised plans only marginally show new residential development closer to this existing use than the existing 

dwelling. As such given the recent acceptance of this new use within close proximity to the existing residential use it 

is not considered that there are any grounds for resisting a proposal on this ground given that two uses currently 

exist and have recently been considered acceptable together. 

 

I hope this satisfies any concerns you may have with respect to noise. As per my previous email, please could you 

provide me with your feedback on the suitability of the proposal as soon as possible?  

 

Page 170



2

 

 

Kind Regards  

 

Claire Richards MA  

Planning Consultant  

  

 
  
2 Bar Lane  
York YO1 6JU 
+44 (0)1904 629 258 
  
27 Old Gloucester Street 
London WC1N 3AX 
+44 (0)207 419 5113  
 
Fax: 0845 130 5075 
 
www.aahplanning.com 
 

This email is only intended for the person(s) to whom it is addressed and may contain confidential information. Unless stated to the contrary, 

any opinions or comments are personal to the writer and do not represent the official view of the company. If you have received this email in 

error, please notify us immediately by reply email and then delete this message from your system. Please do-not copy it or use it for any 

purposes, or disclose its contents to any other person. 

 

Page 171



Page 172



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 16 

Application No: 16/00902/73A 

Parish: Cropton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Non Compliance with Conditions 

Applicant: Honeybourne Developments 

Proposal: Variation of Condition 18 of approval 10/01367/FUL dated 15.04.2011 to 

replace drawing no. H/100/12/01 with drawing nos. H/100/12/01 REV A 

and H/100/12/15 to regularise timber clad garage as built 

Location: Land North Of Greys Farm High Street Cropton Pickering North 

Yorkshire  

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  21 July 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  28 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Helen Bloomer Ext: 328 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Parish Council Object  

 
Neighbour responses: G Carter,  

 

 

 

SITE: 

 

The application  site  is within the development limits of Cropton, to the southern side of the High 

Street at the south end of the village. 

 

The village contains a range of building styles from small cottages to large detached dwellings with a 

predominance of stone pantile building materials.  There is a however no designated conservation 

area. 

 

PROPOSAL: 

 

Planning permission was granted in 2011 for the erection of a three bedroom dwelling with detached 

garage, ref 10/01367/FUL. In 2014 an application was submitted to discharge the conditions.  At that 

time the application details indicated that  the garage would be constructed from stone to match that of 

the dwelling house, ref 14/00244/COND. The developer has however proceeded to clad the garage in 

horizontal cedar boards and this application is seeking to regularise the development on that basis. 

 

SITE HISTORY: 

 

10/01367/FUL. Erection of three-bedroom dwelling with detached garage. Approved 

14/00244/COND. Discharge of condition numbers 02,06,11,12,13, and 14 of approval 10/01367/FUL 

dated 15.04.2011. Discharged 

 

This application is presented to Members of the Planning Committee as a letter of objection has been 

received from the Parish Council. The Parish Councils full response to the consultation have been 

appended to this report.  

 

POLICY 

 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP13 Landscapes 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP16 Design 

Page 173

Agenda Item 16



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP19 Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Local Plan Strategy - Policy SP20 Generic Development Management Issues 

National Planning Policy Framework 

National Planning Policy Guidance 

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

Character and Form 

 

The principal, form, design and siting of the garage has all previously been approved. The 

consideration is therefore whether or not the use of horizontal cedar cladding is acceptable. 

 

 Whilst there are no examples of buildings being constructed from timber clad in the immediate 

locality, it is considered that this material is a natural material and does not have a material adverse 

impact upon the street scene . Furthermore, as untreated Cedar weathers its appearance will tone down 

to a more muted grey tone which officers consider will create a link between the new creamy stone of 

the associated dwelling and that of the greyer stone on the property to the west of the application site. 

In the intervening period this process has already started to occur and photos will be present to 

Members at the meeting 

 

 It will also not have a material adverse  impact upon neighbouring occupiers. 

 

The Parish Council has raised their objection. The full consultation response is set out; 

 

• The PC believe that this was a blatant failure to comply with approved planning conditions 

• To this end it should not be allowed to succeed 

• Accordingly the PC have previously 'applied' for an Enforcement Order  

• the appearance of the Cedar clad garage is considered to be far inferior to the stone building 

originally requested 

• It stands out like a sore thumb and is an eyesore 

• More especially as it is located in one of the most visually attractive areas of the village 

 

Accordingly the PC continues to object to the current application. 

 

The occupier of Chestnut Tree House (opposite the site) has also objected raising similar concerns to 

the Parish Council. The full response can be viewed on the Councils' website. 

 

Members will appreciate that the fact that this application is retrospective is not a reason in itself to 

refuse planning permission. The Local Planning Authority is required to consider the scheme on its 

merits not withstanding the changes from the previously approved plans and elevations. In the light of 

the abovementioned merit assessment officers consider that there are no sustainable planning grounds 

to withhold permission. 

 

In light of the above the recommendation is one of approval  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

  

 Drawing No. H100/12/01 Revision A; Existing House and 

 Drawing No. H100/12/15 Ste Plan  

  

 Reason:- For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning 

 

 

 

Page 174



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

2 The existing stone wall along the frontage of the site shall be maintained along the frontage 

of the site, except where its removal is required to provide the access.  The wall shall be 

continued across the existing access, details of which shall first be submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

 Reason:- In the interests of visual amenity and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP16 of 

the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 1 of the Town & Country Planning 

(General Permitted development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking, re-enacting or 

amending that Order), development of the following classes shall not be undertaken other 

than as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority following a specific 

application in that respect: 

  

 Class A: Enlargement, improvement or alteration of a dwellinghouse  

 Class B: Roof alteration to enlarge a dwellinghouse  

 Class C: Any other alteration to the roof of a dwellinghouse  

 Class D: Erection or construction of a domestic external porch  

 Class E: Provision within the curtilage of a dwellinghouse of any building or enclosure, 

swimming or other pool required for a purpose incidental to the enjoyment of a 

dwellinghouse or the maintenance, improvement or other alteration of such a building or 

enclosure. 

  

 Reason:- To ensure that the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers are not affected by 

the development and to satisfy the requirements of Policy SP16 of the Ryedale Plan - Local 

Plan Strategy. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 17 

Application No: 16/00936/HOUSE 

Parish: Habton Parish Council 

Appn. Type: Householder Application 

Applicant: Mr Robert Gardiner 

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to detached garage following 

demolition of existing stable (revised details to approval 

15/01059/HOUSE dated 14.10.2015) (part-retrospective) 

Location: Rose Cottage 2 South View Kirby Misperton Lane Great Habton Malton 

North Yorkshire YO17 6TU 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  13 July 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  17 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Charlotte Cornforth Ext: 325 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 

 

Parish Council No views received to date  

 

Neighbour responses:  
 

 

 

SITE: 

 

Rose Cottage is located to the south east of the village of Great Habton. The dwelling is accessed off 

Kirby Misperton Road via a driveway that runs west - east. To the north of the existing garage is a 

wall that forms an outbuilding which abuts onto the site. Members should note that this is not within 

the applicants ownership. 

 

PROPOSAL: 
 

Erection of single storey extension to detached garage following demolition of existing stable (revised 

details to approval 15/01059/HOUSE dated 14.10.2015) (part-retrospective) 

 

Members are advised that this application has been referred to Planning Committee as the applicant is 

an elected member of Ryedale District Council.  

 

It was brought to the intention of the Local Planning Authority that work was being undertaken at the 

site. A site inspection was carried out and it was concluded that under that the extension to the 

existing garage was not in accordance with the previously approved plans and the new works 

constituted development requiring a grant of planning permission from the Local Planning Authority. 

In the absence of  planning permission, the development is currently unauthorised. In an attempt to 

remedy this breach of planning control, it was advised that retrospective planning permission for the 

retention of the extension to the existing garage should be sought. The application was received and 

validated on the 18th May 2016. It is described as part retrospective as the walls have been built, but 

the roof has not been installed.  

 

The applicant decided to erect a single storey extension to the existing detached garage, rather than 

erecting a new build double garage and garden room following the demolition of the existing garage 

and stables which was granted approval on the 14th October 2015.  

 

 

 

Page 180

Agenda Item 17



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

POLICY: 
 

The Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy (2013) 

 

Policy SP16 – Design 

Policy SP19 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development 

Policy SP20 – Generic Development Management Issues 

 

National Planning Policy Framework (2012)  

 

Chapter 7 - Requiring good design  

 

HISTORY: 
 

15/01059/HOUSE - Planning permission granted 14.10.2015 - Erection of double garage and garden 

room following demolition of existing garage and stables.  

 

APPRAISAL: 
 

The main considerations to be taken into account with regard to the proposal include: 

 

i. Character and form 

ii. Impact upon the street scene 

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity 

iv. Highway safety 

v. Other matters 

vi. Conclusion  

 

i. Character and form 

 

The proposed single storey extension to the east of the existing garage will measure 2.4m to the eaves, 

2.9m to the ridge, 5.1m  in width at the widest point and 6.4m in depth. There will be a diagonal wall 

on the south elevation facing into the garden of Rose Cottage. The elevation facing the garden of Pear 

Cottage will be have a render finish, with the colour to be 'Linden' (a pale cream colour). The 

remaining walls are constructed of natural stone, with the roof being a steel clad box profile, in a pale 

green finish. It is considered that because the roof is a very shallow pitch, the roof will not be readily 

visible from ground level.  

        

Policy SP16 (Design) of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy states the following: 

 

To reinforce local distinctiveness, the location, siting, form, layout, scale and detailed design of new 

development should respect the context provided by its surroundings. 

 

Extensions and alterations to existing buildings will be appropriate and sympathetic to the character 

and appearance of the host building in terms of scale, form and use of materials 

 

It is considered that the proposal is appropriate and sympathetic to the character and appearance of the 

host building in terms of scale, form and use of materials.  

 

ii. Impact upon the street scene 
 

The proposed garage and garden room will be positioned approximately 40m from Kirkby Misperton 

Lane, with only the western elevation being visible from the street scene. It is considered that the 

proposal will not be readily visible and therefore not detrimental to the street scene.  

 

 

 

Page 181



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

iii. Impact upon neighbouring amenity 
 

Rose Cottage is adjoined to 'South View'. To the north west of Rose Cottage are September Cottage 

and Lavender Cottage. The driveway that serves Rose Cottage is located adjacent to these dwellings. 

The garden and associated outbuildings of Pear Tree Cottage are located to the north of the proposed 

garage and garden room.  

 

It is considered that the proposal, by virtue of its height and positioning of the proposed windows will 

not have a material adverse impact upon any neighbouring occupiers. This is in terms of being 

overbearing in presence, causing loss of natural light or loss of privacy. The proposals is therefore 

considered to comply with Policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. It is not anticipated 

there will not be a material increase in vehicles affecting the properties of September Cottage and 

Lavender Cottage.  

 

iv. Highway safety 
 

The proposal continues to provide on site parking for the property.  

 

v. Other matters 

 

There has been no response from the Parish Council or any other third parties with regard to the 

proposal.  

 

 

vi. Conclusion  
 

In light of the above considerations, the proposal is considered to meet the relevant policy criteria 

outlined within Policies SP16, SP19 and SP20 of the adopted Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy and 

within the National Planning Policy Framework. The proposal is therefore recommended for 

approval, subject to the following conditions. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, within three months of 

the date of this Decision Notice, the north east elevation of the extension hereby approved as 

shown on Drawing 'As Existing Garage and Stable Block with Proposed Garage Workshop 

Extension (date stamped 18.05.2015) shall be rendered with a finish of silicone thin coat in 

the colour 'Linden' as submitted to the Local Planning Authority on 5th June 2016.   

  

 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the locality and to accord with Policy SP20 

of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy.  

  

 

3 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s):. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

 

 

 

Page 182



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 

 

Item Number: 18 

Application No: 16/00941/FUL 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Appn. Type: Full Application 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs D Duncan 

Proposal: Change of use and alterations to post office to form 1no. bedroom annexe 

together with formation of vehicular access and erection of close-boarded 

timber fence and gate to match existing 

Location: Shop 42 Beverley Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 9BU 

 

Registration Date:          
8/13 Wk Expiry Date:  15 July 2016  

Overall Expiry Date:  18 June 2016 

Case Officer:  Rachel Smith Ext: 323 

 

CONSULTATIONS: 
 

Parish Council Recommend refusal  

Highways North Yorkshire Recommend conditions  

 
Neighbour responses: Miss Leonie Coombes,  

 

 

 

1.0  SITE 

 
1.1  The application site is situated on the southern side of Beverley Road, close to the junction with 

Eastfield Road and Mill Street.  It comprises a dwelling, with a post office forming the front 

part of the ground floor.   There is an area of parking to the front. It is separated from the 

neighbouring dwelling by a mature hedge.  The immediate area is predominantly residential. 

 

2.0  PROPOSAL 
 

2.1 The post office is currently operated by the family who occupy the associated dwelling. 

Permission is sought for the: 

 

(i)   Change of use of the post office to form a one bedroom annexe,  

(ii)  Alterations to front  

(ii)   Formation of a vehicular access, and the; 

(iii)  Erection of a fence and double gates to the front of the proposed annexe. 

 

The application has been brought to Planning Committee because the applicants are the parents 

of a Council Member. 

 

3.0  HISTORY 

 

3.1 There is no planning history on the site. 

 

4.0  POLICY 
 

 Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy 

 

 Policy SP1 - General Location of Development 

 Policy SP2 - Delivery and Distribution of New Housing 

 Policy SP4 - Type and Mix of New Housing 

Page 186

Agenda Item 18



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 Policy SP7 - Town Centres and Retailing 

 Policy SP11 - Community Facilities and Services 

 Policy SP16 - Design 

 Policy SP19 - Presumption in favour of sustainable development 

 Policy SP20 - Generic Development Management Issues 

 Policy SP22 - Planning Obligations, Developer Contributions and Community Infrastructure 

Levy 

 

5.0  APPRAISAL. 

 

 The main  issues in the consideration of the application are: 

 

• principle of the change of use; 

• impact on existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers; 

• appropriateness of layout and design; 

• highway considerations; and 

• contributions 

 

5.1  Principle of Change of use 

 

5.1.2  Policy SP11 Community Facilities and Services provides policy support in principle for the 

provision of new community facilities, and also the protection of existing ones. The policy 

includes the following paragraph: 

 

 Protection 

 Existing local retail, community, cultural, leisure and recreational services and facilities that 

contribute to the vitality of the towns and villages and the well-being of local communities will 

be protected from loss/redevelopment unless it can be demonstrated that: 

 

 · there is no longer a need for the facility or suitable and accessible alternatives exist, or 

 · that it is no longer economically viable to provide the facility, or 

 · Proposals involving replacement facilities provide an equivalent or greater benefit to the 

community and can be delivered with minimum disruption to provision 

 

5.1.3 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) also expresses support for the provision and 

retention of community facilities, and includes the following paragraphs; 

 

70. To deliver the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, 

planning policies and decisions should: 

 

• plan positively for the provision and use of shared space, community facilities (such as local 

shops, meeting places, sports venues, cultural buildings, public houses and places of worship) 

and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential 

environments; 

 

• guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where this 

would reduce the community’s ability to meet its day-to-day needs; 

 

5.1.4  Policy SP 7 - Town Centres and Retailing seeks to resist the loss of retail floor space. However, 

this restriction is limited to Primary Retail Frontages in Norton this relates to Commercial 

Street. 

 

5.1.5  The proposed development will result in the loss of the post office. During the site visit, it was 

clear that it is a facility that is regularly used. It is noted that Norton Town Council has objected 

to the application on the basis of the 'loss of  retail amenity'. They further state that shops are 

vital to this area of town, especially with new residential developments pending in the area. 

Page 187



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

Nevertheless the applicants have advised that the closure of  Beverley Road Post Office is part 

of a number of changes to the post office service that are being implemented. A replacement 

facility will be integrated into Cost Cutter on Commercial Street.   

 

5.1.6  Accordingly, it is considered that the closure of the post office has already been agreed as part 

of the business re-structure, and its loss will not breach the requirements of Policy SP11 of the 

Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy, or the NPPF.  Furthermore the Post Office is not situated 

on a Primary Retail Frontage, and therefore there is no protection through Policy SP7 of the 

Development Plan. 

 

5.1.7  In relation to the change of use of the premises to an annexe, the Local Plan Strategy identifies  

 

 Malton and Norton as the Primary Focus for Growth.  Furthermore  Policy SP4 Type and Mix 

of New Housing, includes the following requirement: 

 

 Increased housing choice and high quality housing will be provided through: 

 

 · New housing development 

 · The re-use of empty properties 

 · Improvements and adaptations to existing homes 

 

5.1.8  The proposed development will provide 1 bedroom accommodation for a family member, and 

therefore if approved would increase the range of accommodation available.  It is considered 

therefore that the development accords with the development strategy of the Ryedale Plan - 

Local Plan Strategy.  

 

5.1.9  Accordingly, there is no policy objection to the principle of the  development. 

 

5.2  Appropriateness of Layout and Design 

 
5.2.1  The proposed accommodation will provide one bedroom, together with a living room, kitchen 

and shower room. Access will be provided into the main dwelling. The annexe will have its 

own front door and a parking space. The principle dwelling will be accessed from the rear. It is 

considered that the layout will provide appropriate accommodation for one person, whilst the 

relationship with the main dwelling is such that care/supervision is available if required. It is 

considered however that due to the relationship between the annexe and the main house,  

occupation  should be restricted to a family member or dependent of the occupants in the main 

house. 

 

5.2.2  In terms of design, the development will result in the loss of the existing shop front, however 

the footprint will not be increased. It is considered that the materials and fenestration 

reasonably respects the design of the existing dwelling. Whilst there are few  properties with 

extensions to the front on this part of Beverley Road, it is considered that the limited scale of 

the works is such that the development will not be out of keeping with the overall character of 

the area.  

 

5.2.3  The initial plans provided a timber fence to the front, however the plans have since been revised 

to include the provision of privet hedging to the rear of it. It is considered that this will 'soften' 

the impact of the development, and better relate to the adjacent dwelling.  

 

5.3   Impact of development on existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers 

 

5.3.1 It is not considered that the resultant development will result in a significant  increase in 

comings and goings than may otherwise be associated with one, family sized dwelling. 

Furthermore, the bedroom for the annexe will be adjacent to the attached neighbouring 

property, and therefore is unlikely to result in increased noise or general disturbance. An 

additional parking space will be provided to the front, however this could be required in any 

Page 188



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

event for the existing dwelling.  Furthermore  it is of particular relevance, that the existing use 

of the premises as a post office also generates a significant volume of comings and goings. 

 

5.4  Highway Considerations 

 
5.4.1 The development will provide a further off street parking space. It is noted that there is no 

turning space within the site, and therefore vehicles will have to reverse in, or out of the 

driveway. Nevertheless,  this arrangement is carried out on many of the other dwellings  on this 

part of Beverley Road. The Local Highways Authority has taken account of the current use of 

the site, and the 'generation of short-term on-street parking and vehicular activity associated 

with it'. Accordingly there is no Highway Authority objection to the proposed development.  

 

5.5  Contributions 

 

5.5.1 The application provides annexe accommodation in relation to the existing dwelling, and 

therefore would not be subject to the Community Infrastructure Levy.  

 

6.0  Summary 

 

6.1  The closure of Beverley Road Post Office has already been agreed by the Post Office, and will 

be implemented whether this planning application is approved or not. It is considered that the 

proposed development will increase the range of residential accommodation provided.  It 

reasonably respects the character of both the existing dwelling, and the wider streetscene. The 

are no highway objections to the proposed development, and it is not considered that it will 

result in an adverse impact on the existing amenities of neighbouring occupiers. Accordingly, 

the recommendation is one of approval. 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Approval  
 

1 The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before . 

  

 Reason:- To ensure compliance with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 

Act 2004 

 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be used only insofar as it forms an 

annexe/extension to the dwelling currently known as 42 Beverley Road, and shall at no time 

be occupied as a separate or self-contained dwelling unit. 

  

 Reason:- It is not considered that the layout, or relationship of the annexe with the existing 

dwelling, is appropriate for independent occupation, and to satisfy the requirements of 

policy SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

3 Prior to the occupation of the annexe hereby approved, or such longer time as may be 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, the landscaping  shown on drawing 

No. 16-1142-2 shall be carried out in its entirety. Any plants which, within a period of five 

years from being planted die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 

be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species.  

  

 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area, and to satisfy the requirements of Policy 

SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

4 Notwithstanding the submitted details, the alterations to the property hereby approved shall 

be carried out in matching bricks and roof tiles, unless an alternative material has first been 

agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  

Page 189



 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

5 July 2016 

 Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area, and to satisfy the requirements of policy 

SP20 of the Ryedale Plan - Local Plan Strategy. 

 

5 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 

approved plan(s): 

 Dwg 16-1142-2 dated 03/06/15. 

  

 Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning. 

 

Background Papers: 
  

Adopted Ryedale Local Plan 2002 

Local Plan Strategy 2013 

National Planning Policy Framework 

Responses from consultees and interested parties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

APPLICATIONS DETERMINED BY THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL MANAGER 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE  SCHEME OF DELEGATED DECISIONS 

  
 

 

1.  

Application No: 15/01024/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: CRG Insolvency And Financial Reco (Mr Charles Ranby-Gorwood) 

Location: 12 Kirby Mills Road Kirkby Mills Kirkbymoorside YO62 6NP 

Proposal: Erection of a two storey extension to side elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

2.  

Application No: 15/01412/OBL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Fendale Developments Ltd 

Location: Rectory Farm Main Street Scrayingham Malton YO41 1JD  

Proposal: Modification of the Affordable Housing Commuted Sum as specified in The Third 

Schedule (Negative Obligations) - Commuted Sums of the Deed made on 19.12.2013 

relating to approval 06/01232/FUL dated 13.01.2014 - within Para.2 replace the 

figure of £80,000 (Eighty Thousand Pounds) by the figure of £75,000 (Seventy Five 

Thousand Pounds), remove the words "first instalment of" and delete completely 

Paras.3 and 4 of the Third Schedule (Negative Obligations)-Commuted Sums to give 

a total Affordable Housing Commuted sum of £75,000 (Seventy Five Thousand 

Pounds) instead of £240,000 (Two Hundred and Forty Thousand Pounds) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

3.  

Application No: 15/01486/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Barton-le-Street Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr P Niven 

Location: Land Off High Street Barton Le Street Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a 3no. bedroom house of multiple occupation to provide staff 

accommodation together with formation of vehicular access, parking and turning 

area. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

4.  

Application No: 16/00071/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr C Nichols 

Location: Land At OS Fields 0078 And 0063 Westgate Carr Road Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of general purpose agricultural storage building to include housing of 

livestock 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

5.  

Application No: 16/00091/OUT    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Brian Prince 

Location: Land North Of Sycamore Grove Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of 2no. single storey dwellings (site area 0.041ha) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

6.  

Application No: 16/00231/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirby Misperton Parish Council Page 197

Agenda Item 20



Applicant: Mr Lee Wright 

Location: Greystones Main Street Kirby Misperton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 6XL  

Proposal: Erection of part two storey/ part single storey extensions to rear and side following 

partial demolition of rear outbuilding and demolition of conservatory 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

7.  

Application No: 16/00311/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Slingsby Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs P Ormrod 

Location: Yew Tree Cottage  Railway Street Slingsby Malton YO62 4AL 

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to rear elevation. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

8.  

Application No: 16/00372/LBC    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mrs Janet Cooke 

Location: 6 Westgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8BA 

Proposal: External alterations to include installation of 7no. timber double glazed replacement 

windows to front and rear elevations. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

9.  

Application No: 16/00384/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Mark Norton 

Location: 81 Westgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AU 

Proposal: Rebuilding and reroofing of partially collapsed outbuilding to include installation of 

barn doors to east elevation (retrospective). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

10.  

Application No: 16/00443/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: H L Halder Ltd 

Location: Land Adj To 8 Norman Close Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a 4no. bedroom detached dwelling and detached garage together with 

formation of vehicular access (revised details to refusal 15/00766/FUL dated 

25.08.2015) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

11.  

Application No: 16/00487/73AM    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Commercial Development Projects And Fitzwilliam Trust Corp 

Location: Land At Edenhouse Road Old Malton Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Removal of Conditions 14 and 23 (detailed highway works) and Variation of 

Condition 40 to remove drawing no. 13051-011 Revision A (Connect) of approval 

14/00426/MOUTE dated 24.03.2015. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

12.  

Application No: 16/00481/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr David Beeson 

Location: The Mount 37 Potter Hill Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AD  

Proposal: Change of use and alterations of part of ground floor to form a 1no. bedroom 

self-contained annexe for mixed use of family residential accommodation and 

holiday letting. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ Page 198



 

13.  

Application No: 16/00509/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sproxton Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr Jeremy Shaw 

Location: Honeystone House Chapel Lane Sproxton Helmsley YO62 5ER  

Proposal: Erection of a detached shed 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

14.  

Application No: 16/00569/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Colin Hepher 

Location: Home Cottage  Main Street Hovingham YO62 4LF 

Proposal: Internal alterations to include installation of 6no. secondary glazing units to ground, 

first and second floor windows. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

15.  

Application No: 16/00612/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Sellers 

Location: Standfield Hall Westgate Carr Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8LX  

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of outbuilding to form a two bedroom holiday cottage 

with removal of adjacent fold yard roof and pillars to form an associated 

parking/amenity area 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

16.  

Application No: 16/00610/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sproxton Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Lamont 

Location: Buildings At Low Woods Farm Sproxton Helmsley   

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of existing attached agricultural buildings to form 

additional domestic living space to allow formation of a 7no. bedroom dwelling 

including 3no. en-suite guest bedrooms. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

17.  

Application No: 16/00611/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Jonathan Bull-Diamond 

Location: Land North Of Stone Lea Main Street Welburn Malton   

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building to support farming of sheep 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

18.  

Application No: 16/00630/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Hovingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Peter Stark 

Location: Station Farm  Main Street Hovingham North Yorkshire YO62 4LQ 

Proposal: Erection of an agricultural building for storage of fodder and agricultural machinery 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

19.  

Application No: 16/00653/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr John Jaggard 

Location: 3 Westfield Mews Kirkbymoorside YO62 6BA  

Proposal: Erection of conservatory to rear elevation. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ Page 199



 

20.  

Application No: 16/00657/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Applicant: Alan Wood & Partners (Mr Mike Trousdale) 

Location: Exhibition Building At Kingspan St Hildas Street Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Retention of exhibition building previously approved under 04/00885/FUL dated 

22.11.2004. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

21.  

Application No: 16/00658/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Gilling East Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs D Guy 

Location: Sycamore Cottage 1 Cawton Road Gilling East Helmsley YO62 4JG  

Proposal: Installation of 2 dormer windows to front elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

22.  

Application No: 16/00672/HOUSE    Decision:  Refusal 

Parish: Wombleton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Steve Gridley 

Location: High Bank High Street Wombleton Kirkbymoorside YO62 7RR  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to north elevation to form workshop and double 

garage, erection of covered porch area to west elevation, rebuilding and extension of 

existing garage to form summer room to include monopitch roof, and raising of roof 

pitches to north elevation following removal of dormer window (revised details to 

approval 15/01469/HOUSE dated 09.02.2016). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

23.  

Application No: 16/00675/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Longbone 

Location: Land South Of Back Lane South Middleton Pickering North Yorkshire   

Proposal: Erection of a detached 4no. bedroom dwelling and attached garage together with 

formation of vehicular access and 2no. car parking spaces. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

24.  

Application No: 16/00684/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Norton Town Council 

Applicant: Next Generation Joinery (Mr Marcus Winn) 

Location: 70 Scarborough Road Norton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8AE  

Proposal: Formation of vehicular access with parking/turning area 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

25.  

Application No: 16/00699/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Claxton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Burrows 

Location: York House Main Street Claxton Malton YO60 7SD  

Proposal: Change of use and alteration of existing detached outbuilding to form a one bedroom 

self-contained residential annex 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

26.  

Application No: 16/00701/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Carveles 

Location: Orchard House  High Street Nawton Helmsley YO62 7TT Page 200



Proposal: External and internal alterations to include erection of single storey rear extension 

and porch following removal of existing conservatory and utility room, installation 

of 2no. conservation roof lights to rear elevation roof slope, replacement of south 

elevation patio doors by a single timber window with stone lintel and stonework infill 

and internal alterations including removal of dummy chimney breast in kitchen, 

alterations to first floor bathroom/dressing room layout and insulated roof lining to 

attic rooms 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

27.  

Application No: 16/00704/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Aislaby, Middleton & Wrelton Parish 

Applicant: Mrs V Clark 

Location: The Beech Villa Wrelton Cliff Road Wrelton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8PJ  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to side and detached double garage following 

demolition of existing single storey extension and detached garage 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

28.  

Application No: 16/00720/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs S Wallace 

Location: Wesley Cottage Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8EY  

Proposal: Erection of two storey rear extension to replace existing part flat roofed two 

storey/part single storey rear extension together with erection of front porch 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

29.  

Application No: 16/00736/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Zak Robinson 

Location: 88 Westgate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8AU  

Proposal: External and internal works to include the retention of works undertaken to form a 

ground floor wc adjacent to ground floor bedroom, and works to facilitate 

completion of ensuite together with the installation of 4no. replacement timber 

sliding sash windows and replacement timber door to front elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

30.  

Application No: 16/00737/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr B & Mrs B Wray 

Location: Low Mill Lendales Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 8EE  

Proposal: External and internal alterations to include conversion of former mill to form a 4no. 

bedroom holiday cottage, installation of 5no.timber vertical sliding sash double 

glazed windows to replace existing rear elevation windows including opening up two 

blocked up windows to rear elevation, replacement of 3no. windows to gable 

elevation, installation of wood pellet boiler with associated flue protruding from 

rear-facing garage roof slope, repairs and alterations to internal layout to include 

installation of 3no. staircases to connect all floors, raising of rear elevation door to 

floor level with external steps and metal handrail, replacement concrete floor with 

associated under-floor heating to ground floor, simplifying of timber joists and 

beams to first floor, removal of existing raised platforms on first and second floors, 

blocking-up of doorway to existing Mill House and installation of partition walls 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

31.  

Application No: 16/00776/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Helmsley Town Council 

Applicant: Mr David Waines 

Location: Coal Yard Station Road Helmsley   Page 201



Proposal: Erection of storage building for coal, logs and associated coal merchant products 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

32.  

Application No: 16/00796/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Birdsall Parish Council 

Applicant: The Birdsall Estates Company 

Location: Birdsall House  Birdsall Malton YO17 9NR 

Proposal: Internal alterations to single storey section of the North Wing to include 

re-instatement of toilet cubicle, replacement flooring, replacement timber ceiling 

structure where damaged and missing, sections of lime plastering, repair and 

refurbishment of windows and doors with installation of metal security bars where 

shown, installation of mechanical ventilation system, heating system, shelving units 

and external French drain 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

33.  

Application No: 16/00800/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Claxton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Carl Fawcett 

Location: Fox Hill Touring Caravan And Camping Site Claxton Malton YO60 7RX  

Proposal: Retention of a two bedroom wardens log cabin previously approved for a temporary 

period of five years by application 11/00248/FUL dated 03.06.2011 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

34.  

Application No: 16/00807/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Oswaldkirk Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mr R J A Elmhirst 

Location: Oswaldkirk Hall Main Street Oswaldkirk Helmsley YO62 5XT  

Proposal: Reinstatement of 5no. blocked up windows and replacement of 2no. windows to west 

elevation, replacement of 1no. window (W67) and alteration by lengthening of 2no. 

dormer windows to north elevation, installation of new limestone cills to the 9no. 

windows on the west elevation and removal of 2no. sections of timber panelling in 

the dining room to allow creation of window seats 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

35.  

Application No: 16/00811/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Habton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Michael Pickering 

Location: 5 Beech View Kirby Misperton Lane Great Habton Malton North Yorkshire YO17 

6TX  

Proposal: Erection of a detached garage following demolition of existing detached garage and 

attached outbuilding. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

36.  

Application No: 16/00815/REM    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Taylor Built Developments Ltd 

Location: 114 Outgang Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7EL  

Proposal: Erection of 2no. detached 2no. bedroom dwellings with detached garages following 

demoltion of existing gym (outline approval 15/01123/OUT dated 24.02.2016 

refers). 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

37.  

Application No: 16/00816/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Amotherby Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Gyles Parkin Page 202



Location: Glenmore  Amotherby Malton YO17 6TG 

Proposal: Erection of flat roofed single storey rear extension with 3no. roof lanterns following 

removal of existing conservatory 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

38.  

Application No: 16/00818/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Flaxton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr J Hotopf & Miss L Orgill 

Location: The Cottage Main Street Flaxton Malton YO60 7RP  

Proposal: Installation of cast iron railings and gates on low front boundary wall with adjacent 

side gate and timber French double doors with glazed side panels to rear elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

39.  

Application No: 16/00821/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Scrayingham Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Peter Stacey 

Location: Land To North Of Manor Farm Leppington Lane Leppington Malton North 

Yorkshire   

Proposal: Variation of Condition 10 of approval 16/00008/73A dated 29.02.2016 to allow 

replacement of Drawing No.02A.2015.PA01 Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations 

by Drawing No.02A.2015.PA01 Rev.C  Proposed Floor Plans and Elevations (Plot 1 

main roof amended to have gables at both ends) 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

40.  

Application No: 16/00822/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Sherburn Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Mike Suggit 

Location: 7 West Garth Sherburn Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8PN  

Proposal: Erection of detached garage and formation of vehicular access following demolition 

of attached outbuilding 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

41.  

Application No: 16/00823/LBC    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Shaun Fox 

Location: Derek Fox (Butchers) 25 Market Place Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7LP  

Proposal: External alterations to include installation of replacement pantiles to front facing 

roofslope 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

42.  

Application No: 16/00829/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Welburn (Malton) Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs I Thompson 

Location: East Cote House Water Lane Welburn Malton YO60 7EE  

Proposal: Erection of orangery to north elevation 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

43.  

Application No: 16/00833/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Richard Fahey 

Location: Cherry Farm  York Road Malton YO60 7JA 

Proposal: Erection of a two storey extension to west elevation following demolition of existing 

single storey extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ Page 203



 

44.  

Application No: 16/00841/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Kirkbymoorside Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Page 

Location: Land Adj 8 New Road Kirkbymoorside   

Proposal: Variation of Condition 12 of approval 14/01247/FUL dated 13.03.2015 by 

replacement of the listed plans by Drawing Nos. S10 Rev.D, 6405.3E and 6405.3 - 

revised house design and siting 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

45.  

Application No: 16/00856/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Ms Kirstie Vincer 

Location: 16 Castlegate Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7AX  

Proposal: Erection of detached greenhouse 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

46.  

Application No: 16/00857/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Nawton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Neil Mercer 

Location: Grain Store OS Field No 2300 Common Lane Wombleton Kirkbymoorside   

Proposal: Variation of Condition 13 of approval 13/01148/FUL dated 10.01.2014 to replace 

Drawing nos.1387/3A and 1387/2B with Drawing no. 1654/1 - change to roofing 

material and alteration to first floor west elevation windows 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

47.  

Application No: 16/00863/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Malton Town Council 

Applicant: Mr Raymond Pollard 

Location: Barugh House Castle Howard Road Malton North Yorkshire YO17 7AY  

Proposal: Erection of a detached double garage. 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

48.  

Application No: 16/00871/FUL    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Slingsby Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr David Calvert 

Location: Village Hall Church Lane Slingsby Malton YO62 4AD  

Proposal: Erection of a single storey extension to east elevation to form storage area following 

removal of existing shed 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

49.  

Application No: 16/00872/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Douglas 

Location: Cattlemans Cottage Bean Sheaf Lane Pickering North Yorkshire YO17 6UJ  

Proposal: Erection of first floor extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

50.  

Application No: 16/00873/73A    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Buttercrambe With Bossall Parish Meeting 

Applicant: Mrs B Sheppard 

Location: Howl Beck House 6 - 7 Bossall Malton YO60 7NT  

Proposal: Variation of Condition 07 of approval 15/1021/73A dated 15.10.2015 to replace 

drawing nos. AR50 01 B Plans and Elevations Proposed and AR50 02 B Plans Page 204



Proposed with drawing nos. AR50 01 C Plans and Elevations Proposed and AR50 02 

C Plans Proposed 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

51.  

Application No: 16/00898/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Weaverthorpe Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr Nick Carnes 

Location: Fair View Main Road Weaverthorpe Malton North Yorkshire YO17 8EX  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to rear and side elevations following demolition 

of existing conservatory 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

52.  

Application No: 16/00908/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Wilton Parish Council 

Applicant: Mr A Hall 

Location: Wilton Carr Gate House Cliff Lane Wilton Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7LB  

Proposal: Erection of single storey extension to north elevation to form porch 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

53.  

Application No: 16/00926/HOUSE    Decision:  Approval 

Parish: Pickering Town Council 

Applicant: Mr & Mrs Howell 

Location: Uplands Whitby Road Pickering North Yorkshire YO18 7HL  

Proposal: Erection of single storey rear garden room extension 

_______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

Page 205


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of meeting held on 7 June 2016
	5 Part B Report - Developer Contributions from Small Sites
	6 Schedule of items to be determined by Committee
	7 16/00469/73A - Willow House, Main Street , Normanby, Kirkbymoorside
	2 - Revised Block Plan

	8 16/00729/MFUL - Gravel Pit Farm, Sand Hutton, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Block Plan
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 - Revised Design And Access Statement

	9 16/00825/MFUL - New Cliff House, Cross Lane, Sinnington, Pickering
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout
	4 - Proposed Plans
	5 - Design And Access Statement

	10 16/00834/MFUL - East Heslerton Wold Farm, Whin Moor Lane, West Heslerton, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Block Plans
	4 - Proposed Floor Plan
	5 - Proposed Elevation

	11 16/00848/MFUL - Hatfields Land Rover, Thornton Road Industrial Estate Road, Pickering
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout Plan
	4 - Existing Floor Plans
	5 - Existing Elevation
	6 - Plans
	7 - Proposed Floor Plans
	8 - Proposed Elevation
	9 - Design And Access Statement
	10 - Parish

	12 16/00901/MFUL - West Ings Bungalow, New Road to Kirkdale Lane, Kirkbymoorside
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Existing Plans
	4 - Proposed Plans

	13 16/00965/MFUL - Peckets Yard, East End, Sheriff Hutton
	2 - Site Location Plan

	14 16/00013/MOUT - The Showfield, Pasture Lane, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Site Layout
	4 - Illustrative Plan
	5 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	6 - Supporting Document
	7 - Design And Access Statement
	8 - Parish
	9 - Highways
	10 - Environmental Health

	15 15/00423/OUT - Land at Meadowfield, 40 Thornton Road, Pickering
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Revised Site Layout Plan
	4 - Revised Elevations
	5 - Incoming Document
	6 - Incoming Email
	7 - Parish

	16 16/00902/73A - Land North of Greys Farm, High Street, Cropton, Pickering
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Block Plans
	4 - Plans
	5 - Parish

	17 16/00936/HOUSE - Rose Cottage, 2 South View, Kirby Misperton Lane, Great Habton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Plans

	18 16/00941/FUL - Shop, 42 Beverley Road, Norton, Malton
	2 - Site Location Plan
	3 - Existing Plan
	4 - Revised Plan
	5 - Design And Access Statement
	6 - Parish

	20 List of Applications determined under delegated Powers.

